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INDEX TO REAL PARTY IN INTEREST’S APPENDIX 

DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Early Case Conference 

Disclosure Statement, List of Documents and 

Witnesses, and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial 

Disclosure (served 07/04/2018) 

Vol. 1, 1–229 

Vol. 2, 230–459 

Vol. 3, 460–689  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s First Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

07/20/2018) 

Vol. 3, 690–703  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Second Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

09/28/2018) 

Vol. 4, 704–917  

 

Transcript of October 11, 2018 Deposition of 

Joseph Larson 

Vol. 4, 918–954  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Third Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

10/31/2018) 

Vol. 5, 955–973  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Fourth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

12/17/2018) 

Vol. 5, 974–1058  

 

Transcript of March 14, 2019 Deposition of Joyce 

P. Sekera 

Vol. 6, 1059–1258  

Vol. 7, 1259–1475  
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Fifth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

03/20/2019) 

Vol. 8, 1476–1497  

 

Transcript of April 17, 2019 Deposition of Maria 

Consuelo Cruz 

Vol. 8, 1498–1560  

Transcript of April 22, 2019 Deposition of Milan 

Graovac 

Vol. 8, 1561–1609  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Sixth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

06/17/2019) 

Vol. 8, 1610–1623  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Seventh Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

06/21/2019) 

Vol. 8, 1624–1642  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Eighth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

06/27/2019) 

Vol. 8, 1643–1658  

 

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Ninth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

07/10/2019) 

Vol. 8, 1659–1699  
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Tenth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

07/16/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1700–1722  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Eleventh Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

07/25/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1723–1759  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Twelfth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

08/13/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1760–1777  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Thirteenth 

Supplemental Early Case Conference Disclosure 

Statement, List of Documents and Witnesses, 

and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure 

(served 08/23/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1778–1796  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Fourteenth 

Supplemental Early Case Conference Disclosure 

Statement, List of Documents and Witnesses, 

and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure 

(served 09/03/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1797–1815  

Answer to First Amended Complaint (filed 

09/20/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1816–1820  
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Fifteenth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

10/11/2019) 

Vol. 9, 1821–1840  

 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Sixteenth Supplemental 

Early Case Conference Disclosure Statement, 

List of Documents and Witnesses, and NRCP 

16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure (served 

04/15/2020) 

Vol. 10, 1841–1860  

Exhibits to Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s 

Sixteenth Supplemental Early Case 

Conference Disclosure Statement 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

40 Medical and Billing Records from 

SimonMed 

Vol. 10, 1861–1866  

 

41 Medical and Billing Records from 

Desert Institute of Spine Care 

Vol. 10, 1867–1919  

 

42 Medical Records from Desert 

Chiropractic & Rehab/Core Rehab 

Vol. 10, 1920–1943  

 

43 Medical and Billing Records from Las 

Vegas Neurosurgical Institute 

Vol. 10, 1944–2024  

 

44 Medical and Billing Records from Pain 

Institute of Nevada 

Vol. 11, 2025–2144  

45 Medical and Billing Records from 

Radar Medical Group 

Vol. 12, 2145–2341  
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Seventeenth 

Supplemental Early Case Conference Disclosure 

Statement, List of Documents and Witnesses, 

and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure 

(served 10/13/2020) 

Vol. 13, 2342–2361  

Exhibits to Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s 

Seventeenth Supplemental Early Case 

Conference Disclosure Statement 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

45 Medical and Billing Records from 

Radar Medical Group 

Vol. 13, 2362–2382  

46 Pharmacy records from PayLater 

Pharmacy 

Vol. 13, 2383–2390  

47 Declaration page Pain Institute of 

Nevada 

Vol. 13, 2391–2395  

48 Declaration page and billing from 

Desert Radiologists 

Vol. 13, 2396–2398  

Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s Eighteenth 

Supplemental Early Case Conference Disclosure 

Statement, List of Documents and Witnesses, 

and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure 

(served 11/04/2020) 

Vol. 13, 2399–2418  

Exhibit to Plaintiff Joyce Sekera’s 

Eighteenth Supplemental Early Case 

Conference Disclosure Statement 

 

Exhibit Document Description  

49 Worker’s Compensation file Vol. 13, 2419–2577 
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DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION 

 

LOCATION 

Exhibit 38 to Fifth Supplement to Defendants’ 

16.1 List of Witnesses and Production of 

Documents for Early Case Conference (served 

01/04/2019) 

Vol. 14, 2578–2797 

Vol. 15, 2798–3017 

Vol. 16, 3018–3237   

  

Exhibit 56 to Eleventh Supplement to 

Defendants’ 16.1 List of Witnesses and 

Production of Documents for Early Case 

Conference (served 05/13/2019) 

Vol. 17, 3238–3256  

Exhibit 81 to Sixteenth Supplement to 

Defendants’ 16.1 List of Witnesses and 

Production of Documents for Early Case 

Conference (served 07/22/2019) 

Vol. 17, 3257–3277  

 



ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
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1 THE GALL1HER LAW FIRM
Keith E. Galliher, Jr., Esq.

2 Nevada Bar No. 220

3 ! Jeffrey L. Galliher, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8078

4 George J. Ktm.z, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12245

5 1850 East Sahara Avenue, Suite 107
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

6 Telephone: (702) 735-0049

7 Facsimile: (702) 735-0204
kgalliher@~alliherlawfirm.com

8 j galliher@galliherlawfirm.com
gkunz@lvlawguy.eom

9 Attorneys for Plaintiffs

10
DISTRICT COURT

11 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JOYCE SEKERA, an Individual, ) CASE NO.: A- 18-772761 -C

Plaintiff,
) DEPT. NO.: 25
)
)

v.
)

VENETIAN CASINO RESORT, LLC, )
d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS, a )
Nevada Limited Liability Company;)
LAS VEGAS SANDS, LLC d/b/a THE)
VENETIAN LAS VEGAS, a Nevada)18 Limited Liability Company; YET)

19 UNKNOWN EMPLOYEE; DOES I)
through X, inclusive, )

20 )
Defendants. )

21
)

22

23 PLAINTIFF JOYCE SEKERA’S FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL EARLY CASE CONFERENCE

24 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT, LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES, AND NRCP

25 16.1(a)(3) PRE-TRIAL DISCLOSURE
26

COMES NOW, $OYCE SEKERA, by and through her attorneys of record, THE GALLIHER
27

LAW FIRM, hereby submits the following Fifth Supplement to the Early Case Conference
28

1

Case Number: A-18-772761-C
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1 THE GALLIHER LAW FIRM
Keith E. Galliher, Jr., Esq.

2 Nevada Bar No. 220

3 Jeffrey L. Oalliher, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8078

4 George J. Kunz, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 12245

5 1850 East Sahara Avenue, Suite 107
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

6 Telephone: (702) 735-0049

7 Facsimile: (702) 735-0204
kgalliher@galliherlawfirm.com

8 j galliher@galliherlawfirm.com
gkunz@lvlawguy.com

9 Attorneys for Plaintiffs
DISTRICT COURT

10

11 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

12 JOYCE SEKERA, an Individual, ) CASE NO.: A-18-772761-C
) DEPT. NO.: 25

13 Plaintiff, )

14

15 )
VENETIAN CASINO RESORT, LLC,)

!6 d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS, a)
Nevada Limited Liability Company;)

17 LAS VEGAS SANDS, LLC d/b/aTHE)
VENETIAN LAS VEGAS, a Nevada)18 Limited Liability Company; YET)

19 UNKNOWN EMPLOYEE; DOES I )
through X, inclusive, )

2O )
Defendants. )

21 )

22

23 PLAINTIFF JOYCE SEKERA’S FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL EARLY CASE CONFERENCE

24 DISCLOSURE STATEMENT~ LIST OF DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES~ AND NRCP

25 16.1(a)(3) PRE-TRIAL DISCLOSURE

26
COMES NOW, JOYCE SEKERA, by and through her attorneys of record, THE GALLIHER

27
LAW FIRM, hereby submits the following Fifth Supplement to the Early Case Conference

28
1
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1 Disclosure Statement List of Documents and Witnesses and NRCP 16.1(a)(3) Pre-Trial Disclosure

2 as Plaintiff intends to introduce the following documents and witnesses at the trial of this matter

3
NEW ITEMS LISTED IN BOLD.

4
I

5
LIST OF WITNESSES

6

7 1. Joyce Sekera
c/o The Galliher Law Firm

8 1850 E. Sahara Avenue, Suite 107
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

9 *Expected to testify regarding the facts and circumstances of the incident, the injuries sustained as a
result thereof and the effects those injuries have had on her life.

10

I 1 2. Yet to be identified employees
The Venetian Las Vegas

12 c/o Royal & Miles LLP
1522 W. Warm Springs Road

13         Henderson, Nevada 89014

14
*Expected to testify regarding the facts and circumstances of the incident which occurred on
November 4, 2016.

15
3. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

16 Custodian of Records
The Venetian Las Vegas

17        c/o Royal & Miles LLP
1522 W. Warm Springs Road18
Henderson, Nevada 89014

191 *Expected to testify regarding the facts and circumstances of the incident which occurred on
November 4, 20!6.

20
4. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

21 Custodian of Records
Centennial Hills Hospital22 6900 N. Durango Drive

23 Las Vegas, Nevada 89149
*The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered to

24 Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as
any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify

25 regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and

26 billing¯ They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.
Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and

27 billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

28
2
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1 5. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or
Custodian of Records

2 Shadow Emergency Physicians
1000 River Road, Suite 1003
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428

4 *The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered to
Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as

5 any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify
regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and

6 billing. They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.

7 Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and
billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

8
6. Person Most Knowledgeable and!or

9 Custodian of Records
Desert Radiologists

10 2020 Palomino Lane #100

11 Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
1, *The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered to
~ ,, ~ 12 Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as

~, .~ ~ any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify
~: ~ 13 regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and
~ ~ billing. They wilt also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.

.~. 14 Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and~ ~ 15 billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

~p. 16 7. JordanB. WebberD.C.

~ , Person Most Knowledgeable and/or~ N 17 Custodian of Records

18
Desert Chiropractic & Rehab/Core Rehab
10620 Southern Highlands Parkway, Suite 110-329

19 Las Vegas, Nevada 89141
*It is expected that Dr. Webber will testify as a non-retained expert in his capacity as medical

20 physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Webber is
expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatment

21 rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, his expert opinion as
to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident. His22 opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall

23 within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. His testimony
may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy,

24 work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.
In rendering his expert opinions he will rely upon the records of all physicians, health care

25 providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and his

26 respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of Plaintiff’s injuries, the
reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charges

27 for Plaintiff’s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the
medical community.

28
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1 He will render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided to
Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subject

2 incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue to

3 have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished work
life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Webber’s opinions include, but

4 are not limited to, his education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff was
subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, Plaintiff’s history and symptoms, any diagnostic

5 tests that were performed, his review of Plaintiff’s medical records. In addition, Dr. Webber will
testify as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which he is qualified.

6

7 8. Person Most Knowledgeable and!or
Custodian of Records

8 Las Vegas Radiology
3201 S. Maryland Parkway, Suite 102

9 Las Vegas, Nevada 89109
*The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered to

10 Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as

11 any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify
regarding medica! causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and

Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and
13 billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

14 9. Michelle Hyla, D.O.
15 Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

Custodian of Records
16 Southern Nevada Medical Group

1485 E. Flamingo Road
17 LasVegas, Nevada 89119

*It is expected that Dr. Hyla will testify as a non-retained expert in her capacity as medical
18 physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Hyla is
19 expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatmenl

rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, her expert opinion as
20 to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident. He~

opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall
21 within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. Her testimony

22 may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy,
work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.

23 In rendering her expert opinions she will rely upon the records of all physicians, health car~
providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and he~

24 respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of Plaintiff’s injuries, th~
reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charge.,

25 for Plaintiff’s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the

26 medical community.
She will render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided tc

27 Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subjecl
incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue tc

28
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1 have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished work
life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Hyla’s opinions include, but are

2 not limited to, her education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff was

3 subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, Plaintiffs history and symptoms, any diagnostic
tests that were performed, her review of Plaintiffs medical records. In addition, Dr. Hyla will testif~

4 as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which she is qualified.

5 10. Russell J. Shah, M.D.
Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

6 Custodian of Records

7 Radar Medical Group
10624 S. Eastern Avenue, #A-425

8 Henderson, Nevada 89052
*It is expected that Dr. Shah will testify as a non-retained expert in his capacity as medical

9 physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Shah k,
expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatmen~

10 rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, his expert opinion
11 to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident.

opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall
12 within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. His testimon)

may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy
13 work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.

In rendering his expert opinions he will rely upon the records of all physicians, health car~
14 providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and
15 respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of Plaintiffs injuries, the

reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charges
16 for Plaintiff s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the

medical community.
17 He will render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided to

Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subject
18 incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue to
19 have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished work

life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Shah’s opinions include, but are
20 not limited to, his education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff was

subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, Plaintiffs history and symptoms, any diagnostic
21 tests that were performed, his review of Plaintiffs medical records. In addition, Dr. Shah will testify

as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which he is qualified.22

23 11. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or
Custodian of Records

24 PayLater/WellCare Pharmacy
P.O. Box 1200

25 Las Vegas, Nevada 89125
*The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered to26
Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as

27 any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify
regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and

28
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1 billing. They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.
Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and

2 billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

3
12. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

4 Custodian of Records
Las Vegas Pharmacy

5 2600 W. Sahara Avenue, Suite 120
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

6 *The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered tc

7 Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well
any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testif3

8 regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment ant
billing. They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.

9 Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and
billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

10

11 13. Katherine D. Travnicek, M.D.
Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

12
CustOdian 0f RecOrds~

Pain Institute of nevada
13 7435 W. Azure Drive, Suite 190

Las Vegas, Nevada 89130
14 *It is expected that Dr. Travnicek will testify as a non-retained expert in her capacity as medical
15 physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Travnicek is

expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatment
16 rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, her expert opinion as

to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident. Her
17 opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall

within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. Her testimony
18 may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy,
19 work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.

In rendering her expert opinions she will rely upon the records of al! physicians, health care
20 providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and he~

respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of PlaintifFs injuries, the
21 reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charges

22 for Plaintiff s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the
medical community.

23 She wil! render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided tc
Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subjec~

24 incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue tc
have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished worl~

25 life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Travnicek’s opinions include,

26 but are not limited to, her education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff wa,,
subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, PlaintifFs history and symptoms, any diagnostic

27 tests that were performed, her review of Plaintiff’s medical records. In addition, Dr. Travnicek will
testify as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which she is qualified.

28
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1
14. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

2 Custodian of Records

3 Valley View Surgery Center
1330 S. Valley View Blvd.

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89102
*The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered tc

5 Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well
any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testif3

6 regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment ant

7 billing. They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any
Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical ant

8 billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

9 15. Person Most Knowledgeable and/or
Custodian of Records

10 Steinberg Diagnostics

11 P.O. Box 36900
Las Vegas, Nevada 89133

12 *The Person Most Knowledgeable is expected to testify regarding the care and treatment rendered t(
Plaintiff following the November 4, 2016 incident, which is the subject of this litigation, as well as

13 any pre and post incident care and treatment of the Plaintiff. They are also expected to testify
regarding medical causation of injury and the reasonableness and necessity of medical treatment and

14 billing. They will also testify regarding future medical treatment and future medical expenses, if any.
Additionally, the Custodian of Records is expected to testify as to the authenticity of the medical and
billing records associated with Plaintiff’s care and treatment.

16
16. Andrew Cash, M.D.

17 Person Most Knowledgeable and/or
Custodian of Records18 Desert Institute of Spine Care

19 9339 W. Sunset Road, Suite 100
Las Vegas, Nevada 89148

20 *It is expected that Dr. Cash will testify as a non-retained expert in his capacity as medical
physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Cash is

21 expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatment

22 rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, his expert opinion as
to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident. His

23 opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall
within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. His testimony

24 may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy,
work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.

25        In rendering his expert opinions he will rely upon the records of all physicians, health care

26 providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and his
respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of Plaintiff’s injuries, the

27 reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charges

28
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1 for Plaintiff’ s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the
medical community.

2        He will render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided to

3 Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subject
incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue to

4 have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished work
life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Cash’s opinions include, but are

5 not limited to, his education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff was
subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, Plaintiff’s history and symptoms, any diagnostic

6 tests that were perfomaed, his review of Plaintiff’s medical records. In addition, Dr. Cash will testify

7 as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which he is qualified.

8 17. Willian D. Smith, M.D.
Person Most Knowledgeable and/or

9 Custodian of Records
Western Regional Center for Brain & Spine

10 3061 S. Maryland Parkway, Suite 200
11 Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

*It is expected that Dr. Cash will testify as a non-retained expert in his capacity as medical
12 physicians who provided medical care to Plaintiff, following the subject incident. Dr. Cash is

expected to give expert opinions regarding the treatment of Plaintiff, the necessity of the treatmenl
13 rendered, the causation of the necessity for past and future medical treatment, his expert opinion as

to past and future restrictions of activities, including work activities, caused by the incident. His
14 opinions shall include the cost of past and future medical care and whether those medical costs fall

within the ordinary and customary charges for similar medical care and treatment. His testimony15
may also include expert opinions as to whether Plaintiff has a diminished work life expectancy,

16 work capacity, and/or life expectancy as a result of the incident.
In rendering his expert opinions he will rely upon the records of all physicians, health care

17 providers, and experts, who have rendered opinions, medical care and treatment to Plaintiff and his

18 respective expert opinions regarding the nature, extent and cause of Plaintiff’s injuries, the
reasonableness and necessity of the charges for medical treatment rendered to Plaintiff, the charges

19 for Plaintiff’s past medical care as being customary for physicians and/or health care providers in the
medical community.

20 He will render expert opinions that all of the past and future medical care provided to
Plaintiff was reasonable and necessary, that the need for said care was caused by the subjecl

21 incident, that all charges were reasonable and customary, that the Plaintiff has, and will continue to

22 have, restrictions on her activities and ability to work, that the Plaintiff will have a diminished work
life expectancy and a diminished life expectancy. The basis for Dr. Cash’s opinions include, but are

23 not limited to, his education, training, and experience, the nature of the trauma Plaintiff was
subjected to because of Defendant’s negligence, Plaintiff’s history and symptoms, any diagnostic

24 tests that were performed, his review of Plaintiff’s medical records. In addition, Dr. Cash will testif~
as a rebuttal expert to any medically designated defense experts in which he is qualified.

25

26

27

28
8
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1 18. Marissa Freeman
8929 Monte Oro Drive

2 Las Vegas, Nevada 89131

3 *Expected to testify as to the Plaintiffs physical condition before and after the incident which
occurred on November 4, 2016.

4
19. Brian Freeman

5 8929 Monte Oro Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89131

6 *Expected to testify as to the Plaintiffs physical condition before and after the incident which

7 occurred on November 4, 2016.

8 20. Carole Divito
7840 Nesting Pine Place

9 Las Vegas, Nevada 89143
*Expected to testify as to the Plaintiffs physical condition before and after the incident which

10 occurred onNovember 4, 2016.

11
21. Any and all witnesses named by the Defendant.

II

COMPUTATION OF DAMAGES

,~ ~ ~ 1. Centennial Hills Hospital $4,454.00

~r_~ ~ 16
m ~ ~ 2. Shadow Emergency Physicians $1,272.00
I~n
~,~ ~ 17

3. Desert Radiologists $77.00
18

19 4. Dr. Webber $10,756.00

20 5. Las Vegas Radiology $848.00

21 6. Dr. Hyla $1,975.00

22 7. Dr. Shah                                  $17,613.50
23

8. PayLater/WellCare Pharmacy                   $282.33
24

9. Las Vegas Pharmacy                          $1,090.93
25

26      10. Dr. Travnicek $16,000.00

27 11. Valley View Surgery Center $15,489.48

28
9
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1 12. Steinberg Diagnostics $1,400.00

2 13. Dr. Cash $1,750.00

3 14. Dr. Smith $1,675.00
4

15. Wage loss and loss of earning capacity (To be determined)
5

16. Past and future pain and suffering $350,000.00 (estimated)
6

7 III

8 LIST OF DOCUMENTS

9 1. Records and billing from Centennial Hills Hospital (Bates #JS001 to 074)

10 2. Billing from Shadow Emergency Services (Bates #JS075 to 076)

11
3. Records and billing from Desert Radiologists (Bates #JS077 to 082)

12
4. Records and billing from Dr. Webber (Bates #JS083 to 243)

5. Records and billing from Las Vegas Radiology (Bates #JS244 to 262)
14

6. Records and billing from Dr. Hyla (Bates #JS263 to 303)15

16 7. Records and billing from Dr. Shah (Bates #JS304 to 378)

17 8. Billing from PayLater Pharmacy (Bates #JS379)

18 9. Billing from Las Vegas Pharmacy (Bates #JS380 to 381)
19

10. Records and billing from Dr. Travnicek (Bates #JS382 to 475)
20

11. Records and billing from Valley View Surgery Center (Bates #JS476 to 601)
21

12. Records and billing from Steinberg Diagnostics (Bates #JS602 to 608)22

23 13. Records and billing from Dr. Cash (Bates #JS609 to 658)

24 14. Records from Dr. Smith (Bates #JS659 to 661)

25 15. Wage loss document (Bates #JS662)

26
Second Supplement

27
16. Records and billing from Dr. Smith (Bates #JS663 to 847)

28
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1 17. Tax returns from 2016 (Bates #JS848 to 864)

2 Third Supplement

3
18. Certificate of Custodian of Medical Records from Dr. Smith (Bates #JS865)

4
19. Records from Dr. Travnicek (Bates #JS866 to 868)

5
Fourth Supplement

6

7 20. Records from Core Rehab (Bates #JS869 to 938)

8 Fifth Supplement

9 21. Records and billing from Dr. Smith (Bates #JS939 to 945)

10 22. Any and all documents disclosed by the Defendants.

11
IV

DEMONSTRATIVE EXHIBITS
13

Plaintiffs may offer at trial, certain Exhibits for demonstrative purposes including, but not limited to
14

15 the following:

16 a. Actual surgical hardware, plates screws, surgical tools, and surgical equipment as used ir
Plaintiff’s medical treatment and anticipated to be used in future treatment;

17
b. Demonstrative and actual photographs and videos of surgical procedures and other

18 diagnostic tests Plaintiff has undergone and will undergo in the future;
19

c. Actual diagnostic studies and computer digitized diagnostic studies;
20

d. Samples of tools used in surgical procedures;
21

22 e. Diagrams, drawings, pictures, photos, film, video, DVD and CD ROM of various parts ol

23 the human body, diagnostic tests and surgical procedures;

24 f. Computer simulation, finate element analysis, mabymo and similar forms of computer

25 visualization;
26

27

28
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1 g. Power point images/drawings/diagrams/animations/story boards, of the related vehicles

2 involved, the parties involved, the location of the motor vehicle accident and what

3
occurred in the motor vehicle accident;

4
h. Pictures of Plaintiffs Prior and Subsequent to the Subject accident;

5
i. Surgical Timeline;

6

7 j. Medical treatment timeline;

8 k. Future Medical timeline;

9 1. Charts depicting Plaintiffs Life Care Plans;

10 m. Charts depicting Plaintiffs Loss of Hedonic Damages;

11
n. Charts depicting Plaintiffs Loss of Household Services;

12
o. Photographs of Plaintiff s Witnesses;

13
p. Charts depicting Plaintiffs Life Expectancy;

14

15 q. Story boards and computer digitized power point images;

16 r. Blow-ups/transparencies/digitized images of medical records, medical bills, photographs

17 and other exhibits;

18 s. Diagrams/story boards/computer re-enactment o f motor vehicle accident;

19
t. Diagrams of various parts of the human body related to Plaintiffs injuries;

20
u. Photographs of various parts of the human body related to Plaintiffs injuries;

21

22 v. Models of the human body related to Plaintiffs injuries;

23 w. Samples of a spinal cord stimulator and leads;

24 x. Sample of an intrathecal drug delivery system and leads;

25 y. Samples of the needles and surgical tools used in Plaintiffs various diagnostic and

26
therapeutic pain management procedures

27

28
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1 Plaintiff reserves the right to supplement these disclosures with any and all other relevant

2 information and documents ~1 records that come into her possession during discovery.

3 DATED this__{~a~ ~ March, 2019
4

5
THE GA~ERj..~LAW FIRM

6
Keith E. Gall~ihe~r, Jr.,~Esq.7
Nevada Bar Number 220

8 1850 E. Sahara Avenue, Suite 107
Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

9 Attomeys for Plaintiff

10

11

12

13

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
13

1489



1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

2 I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of THE GALLIHER LAW FIRM and that

3 service of a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL EARLY
4

_CASE CONFERENCE DISCLOSURE STATEMENT was served on th,~_~ _,,ay of March.
5

2019, to the following addressed parties by:
6

7 __ First Class Mail, postage prepaid from Las Vegas, Nevada pursuant to N.R.C.P 5(b)

8 pursuant to EDCR 7.26 (as amended)

9 Mail/Electronic Transmission

10 Hand Delivered to the addressee(s) indicated

I1
__ Receipt of Copy on this ___ day of ,2019

12
acknowledged by,

13

14

15 MichaelA. Royal, Esq.
Gregory A. Miles, Esq.

16 ROYAL&MILESLLP
1522 W. Warm Springs Road

17 Henderson, Nevada89014

18
Attorneys for Defendants

19

2o

21 FIRM

22

23

24

25

26

27

28
14
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Doc-Request
www.docrequest.com
P. O. Box 530718, Henderson, NV 89053
Phone: 702-629-5189 Fax: 888-341-5040

Certificate of Medical Records Custodian
STATE OF NEVADA)

COUNTY OF CLARK)

NOW COMES Cecilia Roman

who after first duly sworn, deposes and says the following:

1. That the deponent is the Copy Technician in the Health information Management Department and such capacity
is the custodian of the Medical Records at

Western Regional Center

2. That on Jan 28, 2019 the deponent received a release of information requesting medical records

pertaining to: Joyce Sekera Date of Birth: 3.22.56

3. That the deponent has examined the original or microfilmed original or scanned original of those medical records
and has made a true and exact copy of them and that the reproduction of them attached hereto
contains 53 pagesofmedicalre¢ords and2 ofbillingreFordsandistrueandcomplete.

Date of Service: 2.23.18 TO PRESENT

~ FilmsonCD _1~_I __ SheetsofFilms ~! NoFilms I~ No films requested

Films located at:

Billing records located at:

4. That the original of those medical records was made at or near the time of the acts, event, conditions, opinions, or
diagnoses recited therein by or from information transmitted by a person with knowledge in the course of a regularly
conducted activity of the deponent or the office or institution in which the deponent is engaged.

5. To the extent that the medical records being provided herewith contain medical records received from a different
provider of health care, I am unable to make any representation as to the authenticity of such a records.

CERTIFICATION OF NO RECORDS:
A through search of our files, carried out under my direction using the specific information provided in your request

r~~ revealed no documents, records, or other materials or images. It is to be understood that this does not mean that
records do not exist under another spelling, name, or other classification.

Date of Service:

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct;
~ and~tob By:

Subscdl~             efore me

This~ ~ |~ ~ IS~$J~HNsoN -|

NotavSi
| My  pt.

JS939
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’~I W~m

! Street: 3061 S. Maryland~o.~ ~ Parkway, Suite 200
William D. Smith, HD Citv/State/Zi~= Las Veoaso NV 89109

~ s.~.~ ~
Phone: (702] 737-1948

~.~/,.~.//~¢.~ ,,_~[~ ~ ~ ~ Fax: (702~ 737-7~95

Patient: 3oyce P. Sek~ra Patlen~ #; 379090 DOB~ 03/22/~956 ~62
Da~e ~f Encounter:

Histo~ of Present
Th~ pat~n~ is a 62 year o~d female who pres~ntS for a follo~-up vis~L ~ote for "Follow-up v~slt":
seeing this woman in my o~ce today, This WOman Is here v~a the Worker’s Com~en~lon ~em. Th~s 6~-year-old woman was a
salesperson at a ticket booth. She slipped 9n a w~t floor ~rildng her head and had a loss of consciousness. ~is date of inju~
occurred in 20~5. She has been through rh~zo~omies and has had a brief relief of palm She has pain when ~hanging position She
does use a heating pad. Recumbency als~ helps. She was sent to my o~ce for a surgical consui~tlon. Unfo~unately [ cannot find
notes from Nevada Pain ~ns~i~ute. While she has had rh~zotomies, i am not sure if she ha~ had a dlre~ed face~ bock at LS-S~ for
identification of pain generator.

Add{~onal reasons for visit:

Transition,into care is described as the following;
The pa~ent is transi~ening into fare and a summa~ of care was reviewed.

Allergies
No Known Allergies 02/26/2018
No Known Drug Allergies 02/26/20:18

Past Medical History
Lumbar spondylosis with myelopa~hy
Cervical spondylosls with myelopathy
Other secondary sco]iosis, lumbosacral region
Back pain~ sacroiliac

Family History
Mother: In good health
Father’, Deceased
Brother 1: In good health
Sister ~.: In good health

Social History
Occupation/Work Status: Retirement (Health Related)
Marital Status: Single
Children; 1.
Living situation; Lives with his mother.
Tobacco use’, Current some day smoker; Smokes 1-2 cigarettes a week.
Alcohol Use; No alcohol use
Tllicit drug use: Never
H~V risk factors: None
Highest recreation level prior to spine condition; No Response.

Past Surgical
~one (02/2~/201B)

]oyce P. Sekera Patient #: 379090 DOB: 03/22/].956 (62 years)_
Page 1 / 2
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Diagnostic Studies
Cbiroprad:or
Exercise Therapy
MR[ Brain, Brain Stem
MRI, Cervical 5pine
MR[, Lumbar Spine
Lumbar Spine X-ray

Vitals
02/07/2019 06.:03 AM

Assessment & plal~
Other secondary scoliosis, lumbosecral region (737,43 I M4:L,57) ¯
Current Plan.~:

¯ Patient Education: Low Back Pain: low back
¯ Patient Education’. Smoking: Ways to Quit: smoking cessation
¯ ReFerral to Pain Management
¯ Hew to access health information online
¯ fnstructed / counseled on smoking cessation including modes of cessation. Readiness to quit and motivation

assessed.
¯ Review of Di,aqnostic Test

Comments: We had ordered a CT scan. Tile CT scan Is really quite nterest ng It does show a rotatory subluxatlon
at L5-S~. of approximately ten degrees. Ti]ere are significant facet chan£es including what appears to be a poor y
healed fracture on the superior articular facet. T~ere is moderate I~oram na stones s at th s level She does also
have bilateral s gns OF SI joint dysfunct on.

[ believe thai: she should also have bilateral S][ joint injections. If she has had these and has no~: had improvement then we
would discuss surgical treatment. At this time, my working diagnosis would be most likely the LS-S1 region although [
cannot rule out tile 5I jolnl: unless ~[ see pain management injection notes. I hope th s answers any questions you have, This
woman remains on temporary t:oLal disablllt’,/.

Cc: Farmers W/C (866) 846-311q (faxed)
Doug Clark, ESQ (702) 862-8562
Walter M. Kidwell, ND (702) 878-9096
Jeffrey Webb, DC (702) 457-7083

William D. Smith~ MD

]oyce P. Sekel’a                                 Patient #: 379090                        DOB: 03/22/1956 (62 years)
Page 2 / 2

III ’

1493



Encounter #1

¯ t~ & physical Re .l~rt,~.~,~.r ~.~ondarV scoliosis, lumbosacral region (737.43 ~ M41.57) (William D, Smit~, MD)
~0 ~018: O{fica ~/~s’~ ...........
J~e P Sekera _..

1.0 2018 8’3291 /. .. ,A’,-~¢S M arvland parkWay

DOB 3/22/      r lish ~ P.ace" Wh te
Single / Language: cng ~ "
Fema{e . - . iL- and ~leasure of seeing thLs

History of p~esen}~I .... old female who pres_e,n~ !H’_ ..... su~tat on was on 02/22/~8’:.~_~ ..... qef She was seen by myself.
~he patientls.a~ [~-~rod~v Thiswoman~°n.g~-~-~’~’~rhizotomieswith°utslgmn~’=~ ....
woman bac.k [%~m~y ~(~ ~Itiple injections ~nauuluy
herlow bac~. ~,,~-

Additional reasons for visit:
Tran i ’ n in    r is described as ~e fo0ow ng:
~itioning into care and a summary of care waS reviewed

edical Will am D. Smith, MD; 9/10/2018 4:35 PM)problem L~t/past ~M~ mat ( /2018]: (Marked as
NO Known Problem= L~’~./10" ImnmfhV (72.1 1 ~ M4/
~Prvical eaondylosis w~tn mye ~w~L./. H21 42 1 M47.16)

~,~,o~ oocondary sco osls, lu~,,-_~x ,,
~" ;’a~n, ~acroliac (72~’.6 IMb~’~

Al[erg es (William D Smith MD; 9/~0/20~8 4:35 PM)
o Known Allergies [02/26/20~8]:

~o Known Drug Allergies [02/26/~0~-8]:

pamily History (William D. Smi~, MD; 9/~0/2018 4:35 PM)
Mother In good health.
Eather Deceased.
Brother ~ In good haslll3.
Sister ). ~n good health.

Social History (William D. Smith, MD; 9/~0/20~8 4:35 PM)
Oeaupation/Work Sta~s P, e6rement (Health P, elat~) ’
Mari~l Status S ngle.
Children ~-.
Hying situation Uvas with his mother.Tobacco use Current some day smoker. Smokes ).-2 cigarettes a wee~
Alcohol Use No alcohol use.
II~idt drug use Never.
HIV risk factors None.Highest recreation level prior to spine condition No P.esponse.

Medication History (William D. Smith, MD; 9/10/2018 4:35 PM)MG Tablet, ~ (one) Tablet Oral two times daily, as needed, Taken starting 09/10/20~.8) Ac~ve.
Naprosyn (500! ..... ~Taken starting 09/!0/2018)
MediCations Reconciled
Past Surgical Histo~/(.V~lliam O. Sr,’,iih, MD; 9/10/2018 4:35 PM)
None [02/26/20~-8]:
Diagnostic Studies History (William D. Smith, MD; 9/~0/2018 4:35 PM)
Chiropractor
Exerc se Therapy
MP! Bra n, Brain stem
MP.I, Ce~Cal Spine
MR1, Lumbar Spine
Lumbar Spine X-ray

Vitals (William D. Smith MD; 9/10/2018 4:35 PM)
Weight Nteasurement Declined
Height Measurement Declined

¯ MD’ 9/11/2018 3:36 PM)

~te~ Her eT, am~nat]on toaay a~so ~ ~,~

3oyes P. Sekera D-~T~3/22/~956

~.2/19!20~8 08:42 am                                                            J8942
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giam D. Smi~
Assessment & Plan (~i.           r on 737 43 I M41.57)Other secondary scol os~s~ lu mbosacra~ eg (

~ BENDING 3 FOOT STANDING VIEWS (72083)

inter~_~li [~ ~ L5 Sl She appears to have a, ls?.~

m~ld foram, n~, s~,.~?~,o~,, s~ams to be hav~ng a very ~o~m~,~, aoo W,th ~,s ,n m~ nd, m~s
Note" At this ~me, ~ ~o~ .... ~tent wi~ trauma of at ~eas~ ~ ~r sninal pel~c pa~m~e~s ~re ~ ~ns~c a~ therapeutic.
pa~n g~’~nt h~ ~gi~a~ ahgnm~ an~.~t f~ bilateral SI ]omt ~n]ec~on. - ......... . ........ ommend ~at~,~"r.~o~m~nO ~h~ ~h~ go

~h~ r~main on an~-~nflamma~ne. . ~d ~,~ ce~ n~’has a signifi~nt ~ue w~ oocumm~eu ,~,~=.~h;c c _
~ be without signs of malingering
c osOy wi~ her. ¯ man was inte~ew~ by myself and all films were reviewed by m~eif ~ we~l.

Farmem W/C (866) 846-3~14 (~xed)Cc: ~ug Oark, ESQ (702) 862-8562

Waiter M. KidwQl, MD (702) 878-9096
3efffey Webb, ~ (702) 457-7083

Signed by William D Smith, MD (9114/2018 2:04

~RE SPIN E~ AP AND LATERAL INCLUDING RIGHT AND LEFT BENDING 3 FOOT STANDING VIEWS

(72083) performed: 09/10/20~8 (Ordered)                                               performed: 09/10/2018 (Ordered)

X-RAY OF LUMBOSACRAL SPINE, AP, LATERAL AND FLEXION- EXTENSION VIEWS (72110)

Page 4/53

Jo¥ce P. Sekera OOB 03/2211956
~/~9/~o~ o~:~ am                                                           JS943
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To: Page 4 of 5 2019-03-14 11:16:26 CDT 15125194255 From: Maria Donato

Account Inquiry                                                             Page 1 of 2

Western Regional Ctr for Brain and Spine

7848 f~e~dng Pine I~ace Horr~ Tel#: (702) ~67-~57
Las V~s, ~V 89143 Wo~ Tel#~

Pa~t# 32’16100

~ V~s, ~V 89143 Wo~ Tel#:

file :i,~D :/Users/Mana.Donato3/AppData/LocaliqZemp/116!os~mVJewer/cs~217B.tmp 3/14/2019

JS944
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To: Page 5 of 5 2019-03-14 11:16:26 CDT 15125194255 From: Maria Donate

Account Inquiry                                                             Page 2 of 2

file;/i~D:/Users!Maria.Donato3/AppDatacLocallTemp/l l 6/esimViewedcsi217B.tmp 3114/2019
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MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ 4/17/2o19

Page 1

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

JOYCE SEKERA, an Individual,

Plaintiff,
Case No. A-18-772761-C

vs.                                  Dept. 25

VENETIAN CASINO RESORT, LLC,
d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,
a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; LAS VEGAS SANDS, LLC
d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,
a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; YET UNKNOWN EMPLOYEE;
DOES I through X, inclusive,

Defendants

DEPOSITION OF MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ

Taken at the Galliher Law Firm
1850 East Sahara Avenue, Suite 107

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

On Wednesday, April 17, 2019
At 2:00 p.m.

Reported By: PAULINE C. MAY
CCR 286, RPR

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc. (7o2) 419-9676
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MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ 4/17/2o19

Page 2

1 APPEARANCES:

2 For the Plaintiff: KEITH E. GALLIHER, JR., ESQ.
Galliher Law Firm

3 1850 East Sahara Avenue
Suite 107

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
(702)735-0049

5

6 For the Defendants: MICHAEL A. ROYAL, ESQ.
Royal & Miles LLP

7 1522 West Warm Springs Road
Henderson, Nevada 89014

8 (702)471-6777

9

i0

ii

12

13

14

15 *****

16

17

18 I N D E X

19

20 WITNESS PAGE
MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ

21 Examination By Mr. Galliher 3
Examination By Mr. Royal 30

22 Further Examination By Mr. Galliher 41

23

24

25 -o0o-

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc. (702) 419-9676
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MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ 4/17/9019

Page 3 Page 5

1 GRACIA M. FELDMAN, SPANISH INTERPRETER, 1 A Yes.
2 having been first duly sworn to interpret Spanish into 2 Q How many?
3 English and English into Spanish, interpreted as 3 A Three.
4 follows: 4 Q And how old are you?
5 MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ, 5 A 34, 36, and 39.
6 having been first duly sworn to tell the truth, the 6 Q Do any of your children still live with you?
7 whole truth and nothing but the truth, was examined 7 A One lives with me.
8 and testified as follows: 8 Q And which one would that be?
9 9 A Themiddle one.

10 EXAMINATION 10 Q All right. Are you presently working?
11 BY MR. GALLIHER: 11 A Oh, yes. I work.
12 Q Would you state your name, please. 12 Q And where do you work now?
13 A MariaConsuelo Cruz. 13 A Me?
14 Q Your address. 14 Q Yes.
15 A I live at 911 Melrose Drive, Las Vegas, 15 A At the Plaza Hotel.
16 Nevada 89101. 16 Q The Plaza downtown?
17 Q Is thatahome? 17 A Yes.
18 A Yes. 18 Q How long have you been at the Plaza?
19 Q Do you own the home or rent it? 19 A It’s going to be two years and two months.
2 0 A It’s mine. 2 0 Q What do you do at the Plaza?
21 Q Have you ever had your deposition taken 2 1 A Casino porter.
22 before? 2 2 Q Were you ever employed at the Venetian?
2 3 A No. " 2 3 A Yes, for 13 years.
24 Q Do you understand today we’re going to take 2 4 Q And why did you leave Venetian and go to the
2 5 your testimony under oath? 2 5 Plaza?

Page 4 Page 6

1    A Yes. 1 A Problems.
2 Q The oath you’ve taken today carries with it 2 Q Were they problems with you at the Venetian?
3 the same solemnity as if you were testifying in court3 A Yes.
4 before a judge or a jury. 4 Q Can you tell me what the problems were?
5 Do you understand that? 5 A It’s personal.
6 A Yes. 6 Q Well, I understand that. Did you leavethe
7 Q It also carries with it the penalties of 7 Venetian voluntarily or were you fired?
8 perjury. Do you know what "perjury" means? 8 A I was fired.
9 A I would be fined. 9 Q And do you believe the firing was justified?

10 Q Perjury means lying under oath. 10 A No, but -- but if they do it, there’s
11 A Oh. Okay. 11 nothing that ! could say.
12 Q Do you understand? 12 Q How long were you out of work before you
13 A Yes. 13 went to the Plaza after leaving the Venetian?
14 Q A little general background on you first. 14 A A week.
15 How long have you lived in Las Vegas? 15 Q So let’s back up, then, to your time at the
16 A Almost 16 years. 16 Venetian.
17 Q Where did you come from? 17 What was your position when you worked at
18 A I came from my country in Guatemala, but I18 the Venetian?
19 lived in California for about 13 years before. 19 A Casino porter.
2 0 Q So you have lived 29 years in the United 2 0 Q Were you a casino porter for the entire 13
21 States? 21 years you worked at the Venetian?
2 2 A Yes. 2 2 A No, I was a maid for one year.
2 3 Q Are you married? 2 3 Q Is that -- were you a maid when you first
2 4 A No. I was married. 2 4 started at the Venetian for one year?
25 Q Do you have any children? 25 A Yes.
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1    Q Then, were you a casino porter for the next           1 to 8:00.
2 12 years? 2 Q And did it ever change?
3 A Yes. 3 A Those were shifts, you know, that for a
4 Q Tell me what a casino porter does at the 4 season you would work like that, and then they would
5 Venetian. 5 be switched.
6 A Cleans slot machines, takes care of the 6 Q My question is, was the graveyard shift ever
7 floors, no spills, no trash, vacuum, clean bathrooms, 7 from 11:00 to 7:00 and then changed from 12:00 to
8 pick up the trash and customer service. 8 8:00 like the other shifts?
9 Q When you say "customer service," what do you 9 A Yes. When one shifts, the three of them

10 mean? 10 change.
11 A We are aware if the customer needs something11 Q Did you work one shift more than any of the
12 and offer assistance. 12 other shifts?
13 Q When you worked at the Venetian, did you 13 A No.
14 work in a specific area of the hotel? 14 Q When I say worked more, did you spend more
15 A No, they moved us around. They switched us 15 time working the day shift versus the afternoon shift
16 to a different station every day. 16 versus the evening shift?
17 Q Do you know how many stations there are on 17 A l was more at night.
18 the ground floor at the Venetian? 18 Q And when you talk "more at night," you are
19 A Gosh, so many. That’s a very large casino. 1 9 talking about the 11:00 a.m -- or 11:00 p.m. to
2 0 Q Do you know how many casino porters work the2 0 7:00 a.m. or 12:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. shift?
21 same shift that you worked at the Venetian when you21 A What happened is, while we worked from
2 2 worked there? 2 2 11:00 to 7:00 and then somehow we were switched from
2 3 A Like 20, maybe, or 24. 2 3 midnight to 8:00 a.m. It was not me, the one who was
2 4 Q Is that your best estimate? 2 4 switched.
25 A Approximation. 25 Q But it’s your recollection that most of the

Page 8 Page i0

1 Q All right. So when you were working at the 1 time when you worked at the Venetian, you worked the
2 Venetian as a casino porter, there were approximately2 evening shift?
3 20 other casino porters working the same shift? 3 A Yes.
4 A Yes. 4 Q We call it graveyard. Do you understand
5 Q And do you understand I’m talking strictly 5 what I mean?
6 about the Venetian and not the Plaza? 6 A Yes.
7 A Yes. 7 Q Youtalked earlier about one of your duties
8 Q So when we’re talking about 20 casino 8 as a casino porter was to clean and maintain the
9 porters, we’re talking strictly about the Venetian? 9 floors.

10 A Yes. 10 A Yes.
11 Q Did you have a specific shift that you 11 Q When you talk about the floors, I’m talking
12 worked at the Venetian? 12 strictly now about the ground floor. Is that where
13 A I was working for some time in the 13 you worked?
14 afternoon, then later on in the night shift, and then 14 A Yes.
15 during toward the end, in the morning. 15 Q So for the 13 years that you were employed
16 Q So you actually worked all three shifts at 16 at the Venetian, you would work on the ground floor?
17 the Venetian when you were employed there as a casino17 A When I was in the day shift; yes.
18 porter? 18 Q And--
1 9 A Yes, yes. 1 9 A Also when I was in the graveyard shift. But
2 0 Q What are the hours of the morning shift? 2 0 since they would switch us around to different
21 A It used to be from 7:00 to 3:00, and then it 21 stations, there were times when I was assigned to the
22 was switched to from 8:00 to 4:00 in the daytime. 22 small tower and another day I would be assigned close
2 3 Q And then what about the afternoon shift? 2 3 to the food court.
2 4 A It was from 3:00 to 11:00, and then it was 2 4 But they were the ones -- say somebody does
2 5 3:00 -- 4:00 to 12:00, and graveyard was from midnight2 5 not show up for a shift, and then we are placed in a
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1 different station. 1    Q Did you have a specific area that you were
2    Q All right. So as I understand it, you are 2 supposed to keep watch on when you were working as
3 saying most of the time you would work on the ground 3 casino porter?
4 floor, but on occasion you would be called upon to 4 A Usually by the restaurants or around the
5 work near the food court or, as you referred to it, 5 restaurants in the food court, because that also
6 the small tower? 6 includes the area where the dealers are.
7 A Oh, no. Food court is the ground floor, 7 Q And was that -- when you talk about the
8 yes. 8 restaurants, are we talking about the Lux Cafe?
9 Q I understand. When you worked the small 9 A All of that, all around it. The stations

10 tower, did you work the ground floor or did you work 10 were pretty large.
11 another floor? 11 Q When you say pretty large, can you give me
12 A No. I was on the third floor, below the 12 an idea of how large the stations were?
13 fourth floor. 13 A Like -- I don’t know if you know the place.
14 Q Did you ever work the same floor as the 14 From where the bathrooms are, all the way around the
15 Bouchon Restaurant was located? 15 corner where the bathrooms are going by the security
16 A Oh, yes. 16 podium. It also includes where the escalators are,
17 Q Is the Bouchon Restaurant in the small 17 close to the elevators.
18 tower? 18 Q And does it include the areas that are next
19 A Yes. 19 to the Lux Cafe in the food court?
20 Q So when you worked in the small tower, did 20 A Yes.
21 you work on the same floor as the Bouchon Restaurant? 21 Q So when you worked that area, were you the
22 A Yes. 22 only person responsible for making sure that area was
23 Q How would you describe the floors at the 23 clean?
24 Venetian? In other words, what their composition is. 24 A No. From the stairs where the escalators,
25 A Well, I guess they are floors, they call it 25 to that side, there was someone else.

Page 12 Page 14

1 tile or -- 1 Q And when you say "to that side," are you
2 Q Marble? 2 talking about the side that’s adjacent to the food
3 A -- marble, and they shampoo a lot -- no, no, 3 court and the Bouchon Bakery?
4 not shampoo. There is wax. 4 A No, the Grand Lux Cafe.
5 Q All right. So the floors, the ground floor 5 Q And so what I’m trying to determine is, it
6 of the Venetian, the floors are marble? 6 sounds like you are splitting the area in two
7 A They are marble. 7 stations. Would that be correct?
8 Q And the floor where the Venetian is located 8 A Correct, yes. Uh-huh.
9 or the Bouchon Restaurant is located, is that also 9 Q Were you ever responsible for making sure

10 marble? 10 that one station versus the other station was safe?
11 A Yes. All around it. 11 A Yes. That’s our duty.
12 Q You talked earlier about the marble floors 12 Q Was there a concern on your part about what
13 being cleaned. Can you tell me how that’s done? 13 would happen if there was water or liquid on these
14 A Me or who? 14 floors?
15 Q Well, if you did the cleaning. 15 A Yes, even though it wasn’t my station.
16 A We were just trying to see that there were 16 Q And were these floors -- when they were wet,
17 no spills and no trash, but the special cleaning was 17 were they slippery?
18 done by their graveyard shift. 18 A Yes, because we are pretty careful. Even
19 Q And when we talk about "special cleaning," 19 just a little tiny spill of coffee, we would clean it
20 did you ever do any special cleaning yourself?. 20 up.
21 A No, not me. That’s done with a special 21 Q And why would you do that?
22 machinery. I can’t use them. 22 A It was -- otherwise, we would have been
23 Q And that’s a machine that you did not 23 disciplined. That was our job.
24 operate? 24 Q And did you -- did you have an understanding
25 A No, no. I couldn’t. 25 that the floors, when they were wet, were dangerous to
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1 your customers? 1    A Yes.
2 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form. 2    Q All right. So you carried cloth towels, a
3 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes. 3 broom and a dust mop with you when you worked as a
4 BY MR. GALLIHER: 4 casino porter?
5 Q So you knew the floors, when they were wet,5 A Yes. We also had a locker as well.
6 they were slippery and dangerous to customers? 6 Q So what was in the locker?
7 MR. ROYAL: Same objection. 7 A More towels, glass cleaner, towels for vomit
8 THE WITNESS: Yes. 8 and red bags.
9 BY MR. GALLIHER: 9 Q And what?

10 Q And did you-- 10 A Red bags.
11 A You don’t move away from them. 11 Q Red bags?
12 Q Did you find that yourself, or did anyone at12 A For -- for throw-ups.
13 the Venetian tell you that the floors were dangerous13 Q Anything else?
14 when they were slippery? 14 A No, not that I can remember.
15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form. 15 Q So when you saw a larger spill on the floor
16 THE WITNESS: No. We are pretty 16 at the Venetian and called for help, did that usually
17 conscientious about it and we have seen videos. 17 mean that someone would come to the spill with a mop?
18 BY MR. GALLIHER: 18 A Yes, with a bucket.
19 Q So my question is, do you know if-- who 19 Q So for the larger spills, someone would come
20 were your supervisors? 20 by and clean it up with a mop and a bucket; is that
21 A Oh, gosh. I had so many. 21 right?
22 Q Do you know what their titles were -- job 22 A Yes, uh-huh. And also the security would be
23 titles were? 23 close by.
24 A Supervisor. 24 Q All right. So what rm trying to get at is,
25 Q Did your supervisors ever tell you that the 25 when you talked about calling for help earlier when

Page 16 Page 18

1 floors at the Venetian, the marble floors, were 1 you saw a larger spill, that would usually mean that
2 slippery and dangerous when wet? 2 another casino porter would come to the scene of the
3 A Of course. 3 spill with a mop and a bucket?
4 Q Is that why you kept a close -- you tried to 4 A Yes. If it was large, we would say: Please
5 keep a close eye on the floors, to make sure they 5 send someone with a bucket.
6 didn’t get wet? 6 Because there are people that have
7 A Yes. We had a radio. If they were pretty 7 containers with ice and sometimes they drop it on the
8 wet, we needed to call to have someone come help us.8 floor, so we have to call someone.
9 Q And when you see a floor that was pretty 9 Q Have you ever seen situations where people

10 wet, who did you call to come help you? 10 spill water on the floor?
11 A Our supervisor, that we call the supervisor 11 A Yes, yes. That’s why we are keeping an eye.
12 to ask for someone to come. 12 Otherwise, you have to follow them to see where that
13 Q And when you asked for someone to come, who13 spill is coming from.
14 would usually come? 14 Q What about soft drinks?
15 A Whoever it was close by. 15 A Same; we clean. It’s just the same; we’re
16 Q So was it another casino porter? 16 cleaning everything.
17 A Yes. 17 Q But what I’m trying to get at, though, is
18 Q Now, when you worked as a casino porter, did 18 have you ever seen spills at the Venetian, when you
3_ 9 you use or carry around any specific equipment? 3_ 9 were employed there as a casino porter, involving soft
20 A Yeah, our cleaners, a broom and a dust mop. 20 drinks?
21 Q Did you say "cleaners"? 21 A No, not that. Mostly water, because people
22 A No, no, towels. 22 carry some ice coolers.
23 Q So how many towels would you carry? 23 Q Have you ever seen people carrying water
24 A Two. 24 bottles?
25 Q Were they cloth towels? 25 A Yes.
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1 Q So do you actually know where the water 1    Q So are you saying that on rare occasions,
2 would come from? Whether it would come from the ice2 you would see spills on the floor, the marble floors,
3 or whether it would come from a bottle? 3 next to the Lux Cafe or the food court?
4 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form. 4 A Not spills -- spills, but say that someone
5 THE WITNESS: No. When the water spill is 5 just dropped a little bit of a soda.
6 from a water cooler, you can see the water coming from6 Q And if someone dropped a little bit of soda,
7 it. 7 that’s something that you would clean up?
8 BY MR. GALLIHER: 8 A Yes, yes.
9 Q When you say water cooler, what do you mean?9 Q And why would you do that?

10 A An ice cooler. 10 A Because I had to. I was being paid to do
11 Q So people carry ice coolers over those 11 that.
12 floors? 12 Q And was there a concern about whether or not
13 A Yes. 13 the floor was dangerous with that little bit of liquid
14 Q Now, have you ever seen anyone use the food 14 on it?
15 court and leave the food court with drinks? 15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.
16 A Sometimes, yes. 16 THE WITNESS: Yes. It also gets stained.
17 Q And how about the Bouchon Bakery; have you17 BY MR. GALLIHER:
18 ever seen anyone order drinks from the Bouchon Bakery18 Q And is that why you cleaned it up, to
19 and leave from it? 19 protect the customers?
20 A No, hu-huh. 20 A Yes.
21 Q Have you ever seen anyone walk around with 21 Q That was your job; right?
22 liquor or alcohol in a glass or cup? 22 A Yes, and I would also get tips.
23 A Everyone does it in the casino; yep. 23 Q When you say you get tips, who would give
24 Q So would it be fair to say that you have 24 you tips?
25 seen that? 25 A The guests, when they say that you are

Page 20 Page 22

1 A Oh, yes. 1 keeping an eye to make sure that they didn’t fall.
2 Q Now I want you to isolate, on a given 2 Q During your time at the Venetian, had you
3 shift -- we’ll say the day shift. 3 ever seen a customer fall on liquid on the marble
4 On the average, what’s your best estimate of 4 floor?
5 how many spills you would see during the day shift 5 A Yes.
6 when you were a casino porter at the Venetian? 6 Q And how many occasions?
7 A Sometimes I did, but I did not work always 7 A The one I recall is a lady that fell with a
8 at the same station. 8 coffee.
9 Q Well, I understand. What I’m looking for is 9 Q And you recall a lady that fell with a

10 your best estimate of the number of times on one shift10 coffee?
11 that you would see spills when you were employed at11 A Yes.
12 the Venetian. 12 Q And how do you recall that?
13 MR. ROYAL: Object to form. 13 A Well, we were cleaning and suddenly I think
14 THE WITNESS: At times two or three times. 14 a lady came out with a coffee from a bakery, the
15 BY MR. GALLIHER: 15 Bouchon Bakery on the first floor.
16 Q Would that be an average? 16 Q And so was that a fall that you personally
17 A Yes. 17 saw?
18 Q And we’re talking about spills that would be 18 A Well, we saw her fall and we were close by.
19 in the area that you were responsible for? 19 I had been checking the floor.
20 A The floor close to the food court and Lux 20 Q So is that the only time that you’ve seen a
21 Cafe, it’s floor. But there are areas that are 21 customer fall at the Venetian on the marble floor?
22 carpeted. 22 A Oh, many, but they were drunk.
23 Q Well, I’m talking strictly about the marble 23 Q So you’ve seen a lot of drunk people fall on
24 floors. 24 the marble floor at the Venetian?
25 A In rare occasions. 25 A No, just that they had fallen because they
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1 were drunk. 1 showed a fall on November 4, 2016; right?
2 Q And how do you know that? 2 A Yes.
3 A Because you can see it. 3 Q And you watched the video?
4 Q Did you witness those falls? 4 A Yes.
5 A Yes. 5 Q And that fall was a fall that you personally
6 Q So how many of these falls did you witness? 6 saw when it occurred?
7 A Well, about three I would say, the ones that 7 A Yes. I was there.
8 I watched.. 8 Q So when you talked about a fall involving a
9 Q When you saw these people that you described9 lady with coffee, is that the fall you were talking

10 as drunk fall, were they hurt? 10 about?
11 A These people were not alone. There were 11 A She’s the one.
12 other drinkers. 12 Q So how is it that you determined that she
13 Q All right. But my question is when you saw 13 fell carrying coffee?
14 these people fall, were they hurt? 14 A Because I was there.
15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form. 15 Q Did anyone discuss this fall with you?
16 THE WITNESS: I don’t know because we can’t16 A No, but I remember it. But I no longer work
17 get involved with that. And if they’re drunk, they 17 at the Venetian.
18 get up. They are to get up on their own or someone18 Q I understand. Did you meet with anyone in
19 picks them up. 19 preparation for today’s deposition?
20 BY MR. GALLIHER: 20 A I just received some documents stating that
21 Q So it sounds to me like you are saying you 21 ! had to come.
22 don’t know whether they were hurt or not. 22 Q Did you -- so you did not meet with anyone
23 A Well, no. No. 23 to discuss today’s deposition?
24 Q Is that right? 24 A No.
25 A Yes, because if they were drunk, they would 2 5 Q Did you discuss today’s deposition with

Page 24 Page 26

1 just get up and go. We can’t stick our hands in that1 anyone over the telephone?
2 situation. " 2 A I was only called and told to be here today.
3 Q 1 understand. But you don’t know whether 3 Q So what I’m trying to determine is, where
4 those people, when they got up, were hurt? 4 did you form your opinion that the lady was carrying
5 A No. 5 coffee?
6 Q We’re here today basically to -- because 6 A Because I know that she was coming from
7 we’re involved in a lawsuit as a result of a fall 7 purchasing coffee.
8 occurring on November 4, 2016. It happened in the8 Q And you testified that she was coming from
9 early afternoon hours. 9 purchasing coffee at the Bouchon Bakery; right?

10 A Early wasn’t it? 10 A 1 think so, because she was coming down next
11 Q Yeah. Do you know? 11 to the area where they sell coffee.
12 A I was in that morning shift. 12 Q So you did not discuss your testimony of
13 Q So how is it that you know which fall I’m 13 today’s deposition with anyone before you showed up?
14 talking about? 14 A No.
15 A Because 1 was sent the video. 15 Q And I want to make sure I’m clear on this:
16 Q And you were sent the video by whom? 16 That you personally witnessed this fall when it
17 A I don’t know who. 17 happened, separate and apart from what you saw in the
18 Q So you’ve seen the video showing the fall? 18 video?
19 A Yes. 19 A Yes.
2 0 Q So you didn’t see the fall until you saw the 20 Q So you actually saw the fall twice. You saw
21 video? 21 the fall in person when it happened and then you saw
22 A No, I remember that lady. 22 it again on the video; is that right?
2 3 Q Do.you remember seeing the lady fall? 23 A Yes, yes. I was there. I was cleaning in
24 A Yes. 24 the surroundings.
2 5 Q All right. So you were sent a video that 25 Q When the video was sent to you, was it sent
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1 to you. in a letter? 1    Q So when the person that talked to you on the
2 A No. 2 telephone about this case, did they tell you they were
3 Q How was it sent to you? 3 from the Venetian?
4 A I don’t know. I received -- no. The next 4 A Yes. It was from the Venetian, about an
5 day I received these papers. 5 accident that happened at the Venetian.
6 Q Well, my question was, how was the video 6 Q Did the video that was sent to you, was it
7 sent to you? 7 accompanied by any type of a message?
8 A I don’t know. 8 A No.
9 Q Well, did you receive it at your home? 9 Q No text or anything of that nature?

10 A No, my phone. 10 A No. I was only sent the video and that
11 Q All right. So the video that you described 11 paper that I received.
12 was sent to you on your telephone? 12 Q All right. So you were sent the video, you
13 A Uh-huh, yes. 13 were sent the paper, which is the subpoena to today’s
14 Q And you don’t know who sent it? 14 deposition.
15 A No. 15 A And I don’t even know why.
16 Q Did the sender identify themselves in any 16 Q And you weren’t sent anything else?
17 way to tell you who sent it to you? 17 A No. I don’t even know why I’m here.
18 A No~ I was only mailed these papers and then18 Q So have you understood all my questions
19 I was called from the telephone. 19 today?
2 0 Q All right. When you say you were called 2 0 A Yes.
21 from the telephone, did the call from the telephone21 Q Anything you want me to repeat or rephrase
22 result in the video being sent to you? 2 2 for you?
2 3 A I believe so. That’s how I got it. 2 3 A No.
2 4 Q So when the person called you on the 2 4 MR. GALLIHER: Pass the witness.
2 5 telephone, did they identify themselves? 2 5 / / / / /

Page 28 Page 30

1 A Yes. I was told that it was from here. 1 EXAMINATION
2 Q From where? 2 BY MR. ROYAL:
3 A From this page, what it says on this page. 3 Q Okay. I just have a few questions for you.
4 Q So did someone tell you that the video was 4 A Again?
5 coming from my office? 5 Q I’m going to show you -- strike that.
6 A No, no. I didn’t pay attention. They only 6 You testified that you saw a video, and I’m
7 send me a video and this letter stating that I had to 7 going to show you what’s been identified -- I’m not
8 be here. And I don’t know why I’m involved in this. 8 sure how you want to do this, but I’ve got it right
9 Q I’m still trying to figure out how you 9 here.

10 received the video. 10 MR. GALLIHER: Okay. Just for the record,
11 So when the person called you on the 11 you are showing her your -- the video on computer.
12 telephone, did they -- how did they get your telephone12 MR. ROYAL: Exactly.
13 number? 13 BY MR. ROYAL:
14 MR. ROYAL: I’m going to -- I’m sorry -- a 14 Q So it’s been identified as VEN019. And I
15 belated objection as to form. 15 have a laptop and I’m going to try and turn this so
16 Go ahead. 16 you can see it with the witness as best I can. A
17 BY MR. GALLIHER: 17 little bit tricky here. One second. You can scoot
18 Q So when the person called, did you ask them18 back just a little bit.
19 how they got your telephone number? 19 Okay. I’m just going to -- and what I’m
2 0 A No, but since it was coming from the 2 0 going to do for the record, I’m just going to indicate
21 Venetian, they know my telephone number. 21 numbers so we can identify what we’re looking at.
22 Q Allright. Sothen, you knew that the video 22 Right now it’s paused. It’s at12:31:33 ofthe -- of
23 that was being sent to you on your telephone was 2 3 the footage.
24 coming from the Venetian; is that right? 2 4 Do you recognize the area?
25 A Yes. 2 5 A That’s in front of the Grand Lux Cafe.
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1    Q And when you said that you patrolled an 1 What was that person doing?
2 area --strike that. What would this -- 2 A Me?
3 When you’re assigned to work this area, what 3 Q Yeah. What were you doing?
4 would the area be called? 4 A Checking around.
5 A Station 2. 5 Q Okay.
6 Q Okay. And you kind of broadly told us what 6 A We went to the bathroom to check the towels
7 you did in Station 2. Did that include cleaning the 7 to get a clean towel.
8 restroom? 8 Q Okay. Do you recall, or can you tell
9 A No,not -- the bathrooms were something 9 watching this at 12:33:52, whether or not you noticed

10 separate. 10 there was anything on the floor in the area to your
11 Q Okay. So you weren’t cleaning bathrooms? 11 immediate right?
12 A No, no. 12 A No, no. I was -- I would have walked right
13 Q Do you know who was cleaning bathrooms on13 over it.
14 the day this happened? 14 Q You didn’t see anything?
15 A I don’t remember. 15 A No.
16 Q Okay. So if you are not cleaning bathrooms,1 6 Q All right. You were -- okay.
17 what was your general job -- strike that. Let me ask 17 I’m going to continue and we’re now moving
18 it again. 18 ahead to about 12:38:40, we’ll call it. There is a
19 Looking at VEN019 at 12:31:33, does this 19 woman depicted sitting on the floor and a couple of
2 0 depict an area that you would have been patrolling on2 0 men in suit jackets.
21 the day of the incident? 21 Do you remember this scene as it’s depicted
22 A That’s called the rotunda. It’s a big round 22 here generally?
2 3 circle and then you take the hallway on the way to the2 3 A You mean where she fell?
2 4 corner. Around the corner by security that passes in2 4 Q Yes. Do you remember seeing something
25 front of the Grand Lux Cafe, that’s Station 2. 25 similar to this?

Page 32 Page 34

1 Q Okay. Okay. I’m going to let this run 1 A That’s not the lady that fell.
2 starting at !2:33:10, and I’m going to make it go a 2 Q Well, okay. Let’s move to --
3 little bit faster to kind of move it along here. 3 A Or this is her.
4 There’s a -- at 12:33:35, there’s a woman 4 Q Okay. At 12:39:37 we see a PAD -- a male
5 approaching a man. He’s looking down. Do you know5 PAD person. Do you know who that is kind of at the
6 who that woman is? 6 top of the screen? Okay. I’m just trying to identify
7 A No. 7 people. Maybe you can’t tell from this.
8 Q 1 want you to watch from the left over here. 8 At 12:39:48, do you see yourself.
9 Okay. It’s 12:33 -- I’m going to go back here, sorry. 9 A Yes.

10 12:33:52. I want -- there’s a woman coming from the10 Q Okay. And that’s you on the right?
11 left with a broom and so forth. 11 A As I said, the other one is David.
12 Do you recognize that person? 12 Q There is a man with a bucket at 12:39:51.
13 A No. Maybe it was me. 13 Who is that?
14 Q Well, that’s my question. I want you to 14 A That’s David.
15 watch again. 1 5 Q David Martinez?
16 A Ithinklam. 16 A Yes, uh-huh.
17 Q Okay. 17 Q Now he’s pointing to someone at 12:40:01.
18 A Yes. 18 Do you know who that is?
19 Q Do you think that was you? 19 A I don’t know.
2 0 A Yes, it’s me. It’s me. 2 0 Q Okay. Now, Mr. Martinez, you see him
21 Q So starting at -- 1 want to get the times 21 mopping up an area?
2 2 right. So starting at 12:33:52, on the left side 22 A But it wasn’t wet there.
2 3 that’s a person. You think that’s you? 2 3 Q Okay. Do you know -- well, that was my
2 4 A I think so. 2 4 question. You see him -- we’re at 12:40:15. He’s got
2 5 Q Okay. And what was -- what did you notice? 2 5 a bucket.
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1 What’s your recollection ~fwhat he was 1 but...
2 doing at this particular time depicted here on the 2 Q Okay. So...
3 video? 3 A What happened to -- the floor right there
4 A It seems like she dropped something -- she 4 you see is waxed.
5 spilled some coffee. 5 THE COURT REPORTER: I’m sorry, I’m having a
6 Q Okay. Did you actually see anything on the 6 hard time.
7 floor? 7 THE INTERPRETER: "It was waxed."
8 A No. 8 THE COURT REPORTER: Could you repeat the
9 Q And then l’m going to fast-forward a little 9 whole response?

10 here. Okay. I’m going to go back. 10 MR. ROYAL: Well, I don’t think there’s a
11 At 12:41:07, do you see yourself?. 11 question pending, but go ahead.
12 A Before she fell, you mean? 12 THE WITNESS: The floor is heavy with wax
13 Q No. I’m looking at -- right now it’s at 13 right there.
14 12:41:09, the video. Do you see yourself in the 14 BY MR. ROYAL:
15 video? 15 Q Okay. Now, do you remember cleaning the
1 6 A Yes. 16 area beyond what we watched on the video as you
17 Q Okay, I’m going to let it run now. What are 17 remember what you did?
18 you doing? 18 A Yes. We clean the entire surroundings.
19 A Drying whatever the other one has been 19 People left beer, soda, coffee.
2 0 cleaning. 2 0 Q When you say the entire surroundings, what
21 Q Okay. So just tell me the process. You’ve 21 were you making reference to?
2 2 got a towel on the floor that you are using under your2 2 A Well, look, we have to be careful going
2 3 foot. 2 3 around this column because the floor -- everything
2 4 A To dry whatever. To dry whatever is being 2 4 that has to do with cleaning.
2 5 wet by the other one with a bucket, but there was 2 5 Q Well, okay. I just want to make sure. I’m

Page 36 Page 38

nothing there. 1 going to show you -- I’m just going to show this. I’m
Q 1 see, okay. 2 not going to run it at 12:43:17.

So when Mr. Martinez goes over an area with 3 Okay. You mentioned something about beer,
a mop, your job was to follow with a dry towel? 4 sodas and so forth. What are you making reference to?

A Well, yes. At that moment, yes. 5 A Right there at the comer, people leave beer
Q Okay. Now I’m going to go back. I’m going 6 cans, soda cans, so we have to clean it.

to go back to -- okay. I’m going to go back to 7 Q I meant in what we’re looking at at
12:36:49 and I want you to watch. I’m going to start 8 12:43:17. Do you see any beer cans or soda cans
it. 9 there?

A They are in suits. 10 A No, no. No, but this is the least busy
Q Is that something that you recall seeing, 11 time.

what we just watched there? I stopped it at 12:36:58.12 Q Okay. All right. I just want to focus on
A Yes. 1 remember the lady falling. 13 this time. So I’m clear with my question, do you
Q Did you ever talk to the lady who was -- 14 remember completing the task of cleaning up this area
A No,you can’t. You can’t. 15 or working with David Martinez after the woman got up
Q Do you remember hearing any conversations1 6 and left?

between the lady who fell and anyone else as you were17 A Well, yes. It was cleaned. We had to clean
at the scene? 18 because she spilled coffee.

A No, because the security guards are the ones19 Q Okay. Other than her-- the woman spilling
that speak to them. 2 0 coffee, did you see anything else on the floor when

Q Okay. You didn’t hear any of the 21 you were cleaning after she fell?
conversation? 2 2 A No, but we have to check everything anyway.

A No. 2 3 Q Okay. Now, earlier when you’re talking
Q Now, I heard you say something about shoes. 2 4 about equipment, I heard you say you have cleaners,
A Some people fake falls to get something, 2 5 towels, broom and dust pans.

ii (Pages 35 to 38)
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1 A Yes. 1    A Yes. It’s the most recent. She’s the one
2 Q Okay. Because I made a note here that I was 2 that I remember.
3 confused whether you had a dust pan or dust mop. 3 MR. ROYAL: Thanks. I’ll pass.
4 A Dust pan. 4
5 Q So when I showed that video of you earlier 5 FURTHER EXAMINATION
6 walking around the area when you were carrying some6 BY MR. GALLIHER:
7 things, can you tell us what you had in your hands?7 Q I heard you remark during your testimony in
8 A Dust pan and a broom. 8 response to Mr. Royal’s question, some people, they
9 Q Okay. You were also asked about the tower. 9 fall to get something. What did you mean by that?

10 Does that area have, like, the bridge? ~Does that have10 A Sometimes they look like they fall.
11 a bridge that goes over the Las Vegas Boulevard? 11 Q And is that what you saw in the video,
12 A No. 12 someone who looked like they fell?
13 Q I wasn’t clear what you meant by "tower." I 13 A I don’t know. I don’t know her intentions,
14 know there’s a bell tower or a clock tower. 14 but there was no water there.
15 A I was talking about the small tower where 15 Q Did she look like she fell or not?
16 there was sun coming in. 16 A Yes, she slips, but it must have been her
17 Q Oh, I see what you mean. I see. I was 17 shoe. It wasn’t water.
18 confused. 18 Q And you mentioned also that the area where
19 A And now they have Bouchon Bakery around it,19 the fall happened had been heavily waxed. What did
20 but the restaurant is at the small tower. 20 you mean by that?
21 Q Okay. All right. You were asked earlier 21 A l wasn’t talking about that area in
22 about when mops and a bucket would come to an area.22 particular. Those floors are cleaned every night.
23 And in this particular case, what we just saw in the 23 Q Are they waxed every night?
24 video was a mop and a bucket came to the area. 24 A No, no. They clean them with a machine.
25 A David is the one who brought it to see if 25 Q And that’s every night?

Page 40 Page 42

1 there was a big spill. 1 A No. I don’t recall.
2 Q Was there a big spill? 2 Q Do you know one way or the other?
3 A No, no, there was not. I had just walked by 3 A Yes, they do it.
4 that area. 4 Q So as I understand what you are saying, you
5 Q Was there a little spill? 5 never saw anything liquid on the floor where the fall
6 A No,-no. 6 happened at any time that day; is that right?
7 Q Were there pieces of ice that you found on 7 MR. ROYAL: I object. Misstates testimony.
8 the floor? 8 THE WITNESS: No, no, that is correct.
9 A No, no. 9 BY MR. GALLIHER:

10 Q You testified about drunk people that you 10 Q All right. So you didn’t see any water on
11 have seen in the past fall. 11 the floor, you didn’t see any coffee on the floor, you
12 A Yes. 12 didn’t see anything wet on the floor; is that right?
13 Q For any of those people, do you recall 13 A No -- yes, that is correct.
14 inquiring as to why they fell? 14 Q So the only fluid you saw in connection with
15 A No. What for? They drink and then they 15 this fall on that day was a dry floor?
16 fall and then between each other, they pick up each16 A Yes. I think what you see is that she
17 other. They usually are not alone. 17 slipped, but it was her shoe.
18 Q Okay. And I want to make sure I understand. 18 Q All right. So your testimony is that she
19 When you were asked about falls and you said the lady19 didn’t slip because she hit anything wet, she slipped
20 that fell with coffee, is that the lady that we saw in 2 0 because of her shoe?
21 the video that I showed you that’s been marked as 21 A Because of her shoe.
22 VEN019? 22 Q All right. So the answer to my question is
23 A Yes. I remember the lady falling. 23 yes?
24 Q And that’s the lady you were making 24 A Yes.
25 reference to? 2 5 Q Thank you. Nothing further.

12 (Pages 39 to 42)
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1 THE.WITNESS: Is that it?
2 MR. ROYAL: Yes. Nothing for me.
3 MR. GALLIHER: Okay, we’re done. Thank you.
4 (The deposition concluded at 3:09 p.m.)
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1                                REPORTER’S DECLARATION

2 STATE OF NEVADA)
)

3 COUNTY OF CLARK)

4 I, Pauline C. May, CCR No. 286, declare as

5 follows:

6 That I reported the taking of the deposition of the

7 witness, MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ, commencing on Wednesday,

8 April 17, 2019 at the hour of 2:00 p.m.

9 That prior to being examined, the witness was by me

i0 duly sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

ii and nothing but the truth.

12 That I thereafter transcribed said shorthand notes

13 into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript

14 of said deposition is a complete, true and accurate

15 transcription of said shorthand notes taken down at

16 said time, and that a request has not been made to

17 review the transcript.

18 I further declare that I am not a relative or

19 employee of counsel of any party involved in said

20 action, nor a relative or employee of the parties

21 involved in said action, nor a person financially

22 interested in the action.

23 Dated at Las Vegas, Nevada this day of
, 2019.

24

25 Pauline C. May, CCR 286, RPR
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1 DISTRICT COURT

2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

3

CE}{TIFIED
5 JOYCE SEKERA, an Individual, C~9~Z

6 Plaintiff,
Case No. A-18-772761-C

7 vs. Dept. 25

8 VENETIAN CASINO RESORT, LLC,
d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,

9 a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; LAS VEGAS SANDS, LLC

I0 d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,
a Nevada Limited Liability

ii Company; YET UNKNOWN EMPLOYEE;
DOES I through X, inclusive,

12
Defendants.

13 /

14

15 DEPOSITION OF M~RIA CONSUELO CRUZ

16 Taken at the Galliher Law Firm
1850 East Sahara Avenue, Suite 107

17 Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

18 On Wednesday, April 17, 2019
At 2:00 p.m.

19

2O

21

22

23

24
Reported By: PAULINE C. MAY

25 CCR 286, RPR
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, 2
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2 For the Plaintiff: KEITH E. GALLIHER, JR., ESQ.
Galliher Law Firm

3 1850 East Sahara Avenue
Suite 107

4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
(702)735-0049

5

6 For the Defendants: MICHAEL A. ROYAL, ESQ.
Royal & Miles LLP
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8 (702)471-6777

I0

ii

12

14

15 * * * * *

16

17

18 INDEX

19

20 WITNESS PAGE
MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ

21 Examination By Mr. Galliher 3
Examination By Mr. Royal 30

22 Further Examination By Mr. Galliher 41

23

24

25 -o0o-

Canyon Court Reportin.q, Inc._
66SS W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite k12oo
Las Vegas, NV 89146 (7o~) 419-9676

1518



1 GRACIA M. FELDMAN, SPANISH INTERPRETER,

2 having been first duly sworn to interpret Spanish into

3 English and English into Spanish, interpreted as

4 follows:

5 MARIA CONSUELOCRUZ,

6 having been first duly sworn to tell the truth, the

7 whole truth and nothing but the truth, was examined

8 and testified as follows:

9

i0 EXAMINATION

ii BY MR. GALLIHER:

12 Q Would you state your name, please.

13 A Maria Consuelo Cruz.

14 Q Your address.

15 A I live at 911 Melrose Drive, Las Vegas,

16 Nevada 89101.

17 Q Is that a home?

18 A Yes.

19 Q Do you own the home or rent it?

20 A It’s mine.

21 Q Have you ever had your deposition taken

22 before?

23 A No.

24 Q Do you understand today we’re going to take

25 your testimony under oath?

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc~
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite B2oo
LasVe~as, NV 89~46 (7o~) 4~9-9676
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1 A Yes.

2 Q The oath you’ve taken today carries with it

3 the same solemnity as if you were testifying in court

4 before a judge or a jury.

5 Do you understand that?

6 A Yes.

7 Q It also carries with it the penalties of

8 perjury. Do you know what "perjury" means?

9 A I would be fined.

I0 Q Perjury means lying under oath.

ii A Oh. Okay.

12 Q Do you understand?

13 A Yes.

14 Q A little general background on you first.

15 How long have you lived in Las Vegas?

16 A Almost 16 years.

17 Q Where did you come from?

18 A I came from my country in Guatemala, but I

19 lived in California for about 13 years before.

20 Q So you have lived 29 years in the United

21 States?

22 A Yes.

23 Q Are you married?

24 A No. I was married.

25 Q Do you have any children?

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc:
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite
Las~Cegas, NV 89146 (7o2) 419-9676
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1 A Yes.

2 Q How many?

3 A Three.

4 Q And how old are you?

5 A 34, 36, and 39.

6 Q Do any of your children still live with you?

7 A One lives with me.

8 Q And which one would that be?

9 A The middle one.

I0 Q All right. Are you presently working?

II A Oh, yes.    I work.

12 Q And where do you work now?

13 i Me?

14 Q Yes.

15 A At the Plaza Hotel.

16 Q The Plaza downtown?

17 A Yes.

18 Q How long have you been at the Plaza?

19 A It’s going to be two years and two months.

20 Q What do you do at the Plaza?

21 A Casino porter.

22 Q Were you ever employed at the Venetian?

23 A Yes, for 13 years.

24 Q And why did you leave Venetian and go to the

25 Plaza?

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
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6

1 A Problems.

2 Q Were they problems with you at the Venetian?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Can you tell me what the problems were?

5 A It’s personal.

6 Q Well, I understand that. Did you leave the

7 Venetian voluntarily or were you fired?

8 A I was fired.

9 Q And do you believe the firing was justified?

I0 A No, but -- but if they do it, there’s

ii nothing that I could say.

12 Q How long were you out of work before you

13 went to the Plaza after leaving the Venetian?

14 A A week.

15 Q So let’s back up, then, to your time at the

16 Venetian.

17 What was your position when you worked at

18 the Venetian?

19 A Casino porter.

20 Q Were you a casino porter for the entire 13

21 years you worked at the Venetian?

22 A No, I was a maid for one year.

23 Q Is that -- were you a maid when you first

24 started at the Venetian for one year?

25 A Yes.

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc._
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7

1 Q Then, were you a casino porter for the next

2 12 years?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Tell me what a casino porter does at the

5 Venetian.

6 A Cleans slot machines, takes care of the

7 floors, no spills, no trash, vacuum, clean bathrooms,

8 pick up the trash and customer service.

9 Q When you say "customer service," what do you

i0 mean?

ii A We are aware if the customer needs something

12 and offer assistance.

13 Q When you worked at the Venetian, did you

14 work in a specific area of the hotel?

15 A No, they moved us around. They switched us

16 to a different station every day.

17 Q Do you know how many stations there are on

18 the ground floor at the Venetian?

19 A Gosh, so many. That’s a very large casino.

20 Q Do you know how many casino porters work the

21 same shift that you worked at the Venetian when you

22 worked there?

23 A Like 20, maybe, or 24.

24 Q Is that your best estimate?

25 A Approximation.

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc~
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1 Q All right. So when you were working at the

2 Venetian as a casino porter, there were approximately

3 20 other casino porters working the same shift?

4 A Yes.

5 Q And do you understand I’m talking strictly

6 about the Venetian and not the Plaza?

7 A Yes.

8 Q So when we’re talking about 20 casino

9 porters, we’re talking strictly about the Venetian?

i0 A Yes.

ii Q Did you have a specific shift that you

12 worked at the Venetian?

13 A I was working for some time in the

14 afternoon, then later on in the night shift, and then

15 during toward the end, in the morning.

16 Q So you actually worked all three shifts at

17 the Venetian when you were employed there as a casino

18 porter?

19 A Yes, yes.

20 Q What are the hours of the morning shift?

21 A It used to be from 7:00 to 3:00, and then it

22 was switched to from 8:00 to 4:00 in the daytime.

23 Q And then what about the afternoon shift?

24 A It was from 3:00 to Ii:00, and then it was

25 3:00 -- 4:00 to 12:00, and graveyard was from midnight

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
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1 to 8:00.

2 Q And did it ever change?

3 A Those were shifts, you know, that for a

4 season you would work like that, and then they would

5 be switched.

6 Q My question is, was the graveyard shift ever

7 from Ii:00 to 7:00 and then changed from 12:00 to

8 8:00 like the other shifts?

9 A Yes. When one shifts, the three of them

i0 change.

ii Q Did you work one shift more than any of the

12 other shifts?

13 A No.

14 Q When I say worked more, did you spend more

15 time working the day shift versus the afternoon shift

16 versus the evening shift?

17 A I was more at night.

18 Q And when you talk "more at night," you are

19 talking about the ii:00 a.m -- or Ii:00 p.m. to

20 7:00 a.m. or 12:00 a.m. to 8:00 a.m. shift?

21 A What happened is, while we worked from

22 ii:00 to 7:00 and then somehow we were switched from

23 midnight to 8:00 a.m.    It was not me, the one who was

24 switched.

25 Q But it’s your recollection that most of the

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
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i0

1 time when you worked at the Venetian, you worked the

2 evening shift?

3 A Yes.

4 Q We call it graveyard. Do you understand

5 what I mean?

6 A Yes.

7 Q You talked earlier about one of your duties

8 as a casino porter was to clean and maintain the

9 floors.

i0 A Yes.

Ii Q When you talk about the floors, I’m talking

12 strictly now about the ground floor. Is that where

13 you worked?

14 A Yes.

15 Q So for the 13 years that you were employed

16 at the Venetian, you would work on the ground floor?

17 A When I was in the day shift; yes.

18 Q And --

19 A Also when I was in the graveyard shift. But

20 since they would switch us around to different

21 stations, there were times when I was assigned to the

22 small tower and another day I would be assigned close

23 to the food court.

24 But they were the ones -- say somebody does

25 not show up for a shift, and then we are placed in a

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc:
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ii

1 different station.

2 Q All right. So as I understand it, you are

3 saying most of the time you would work on the ground

4 floor, but on occasion you would be called upon to

5 work near the food court or, as you referred to it,

6 the small tower?

7 A Oh, no. Food court is the ground floor,

8 yes.

9 Q I understand. When you worked the small

i0 tower, did you work the ground floor or did you work

Ii another floor?

12 A No. I was on the third floor, below the

13 fourth floor.

14 Q Did you ever work the same floor as the

15 Bouchon Restaurant was located?

16 A Oh, yes.

17 Q Is the Bouchon Restaurant in the small

18 tower?

19 A Yes.

20 Q So when you worked in the small tower, did

21 you work on the same floor as the Bouchon Restaurant?

22 A Yes.

23 Q How would you describe the floors at the

24 Venetian? In other words, what their composition is.

25 A Well, I guess they are floors, they call it

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
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12

1 tile or --

2 Q Marble?

3 A -- marble, and th÷y shampoo a lot -- no, no,

4 not shampoo. There is wax.

5 Q All right. So the floors, the ground floor

6 of the Venetian, the floors are marble?

7 A They are marble.

8 Q And the floor where the Venetian is located

9 or the Bouchon Restaurant is located, is that also

i0 marble?

ii A Yes. All around it.

12 Q You talked earlier about the marble floors

13 being cleaned. Can you tell me how that’s done?

14 A Me or who?

15 Q Well, if you did the cleaning.

16 A We were just trying to see that there were

17 no spills and no trash, but the special cleaning was

18 done by their graveyard shift.

19 Q And when we talk about "special cleaning,"

20 did you ever do any special cleaning yourself?

21 A No, not me. That’s done with a special

22 machinery. I can’t use them.

23 Q And that’s a machine that you did not

24 operate?

25 A No, no.    I couldn’t.
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13

1 Q Did you have a specific area that you were

2 supposed to keep watch on when you were working as

3 casino porter?

4 A Usually by the restaurants or around the

5 restaurants in the food court, because that also

6 includes the area where the dealers are.

7 Q     And was that -- when you talk about the

8 restaurants, are we talking about the Lux Cafe?

9 A All of that, all around it. The stations

I0 were pretty large.

ii Q When you say pretty large, can you give me

12 an idea of how large the stations were?

13 A Like -- I don’t know if you know the place.

14 From where the bathrooms are, all the way around the

15 corner where the bathrooms are going by the security

16 podium. It also includes where the escalators are,

17 close to the elevators.

18 Q And does it include the areas that are next

19 to the Lux Cafe in the food court?

20 A Yes.

21 Q So when you worked that area, were you the

22 only person responsible for making sure that area was

23 clean?

24 A No.    From the stairs where the escalators,

25 to that side, there was someone else.
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14

1 Q And when you say "to that side," are you

2 talking about the side that’s adjacent to the food

3 court and the Bouchon Bakery?

4 A No, the Grand Lux Cafe.

5 Q And so what I’m trying to determine is, it

6 sounds like you are splitting the area in two

7 stations. Would that be correct?

8 A Correct, yes. Uh-huh.

9 Q Were you ever responsible for making sure

I0 that one station versus the other station was safe?

ii A Yes.    That’s our duty.

12 Q Was there a concern on your part about what

13 would happen if there was water or liquid on these

14 floors?

15 A Yes, even though it wasn’t my station.

16 Q And were these floors -- when they were wet,

17 were they slippery?

18 A Yes, because we are pretty careful. Even

19 just a little tiny spill of coffee, we would clean it

20 up.

21 Q And why would you do that?

22 A It was otherwise, we would have been

23 disciplined. That was our job.

24 Q     And did you -- did you have an understanding

25 that the floors, when they were wet, were dangerous to
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15

1 your customers?

2 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.

3 THE WITNESS: Yes, yes.

4 BY MR. GALLIHER:

5 Q So you knew the floors, when they were wet,

6 they were slippery and dangerous to customers?

7 MR. ROYAL: Same objection.

8 THE WITNESS: Yes.

9 BY MR. GALLIHER:

i0 Q And did you --

ii A You don’t move away from them.

12 Q Did you find that yourself, or did anyone at

13 the Venetian tell you that the floors were dangerous

14 when they were slippery?

15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.

16 THE WITNESS: No. We are pretty

17 conscientious about it and we have seen videos.

18 BY MR. GALLIHER:

19 Q So my question is, do you know if who

20 were your supervisors?

21 A Oh, gosh. I had so many.

22 Q Do you know what their titles were job

23 titles were?

24 A Supervisor.

25 Q Did your supervisors ever tell you that the
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16

1 floors at the Venetian, the marble floors, were

2 slippery and dangerous when wet?

3 A Of course.

4 Q Is that why you kept a close -- you tried to

5 keep a close eye on the floors, to make sure they

6 didn’t get wet?

7 A Yes. We had a radio. If they were pretty

8 wet, we needed to call to have someone come help us.

9 Q And when you see a floor that was pretty

i0 wet, who did you call to come help you?

II A Our supervisor, that we call the supervisor

12 to ask for someone to come.

13 Q And when you asked for someone to come, who

14 would usually come?

15 A Whoever it was close by.

16 Q So was it another casino porter?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Now, when you worked as a casino porter, did

19 you use or carry around any specific equipment?

20 A Yeah, our cleaners, a broom and a dust mop.

21 Q Did you say "cleaners’’~

22 A No, no, towels.

23 Q So how many towels would you carry?

24 A Two.

25 Q Were they cloth towels?
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1 A Yes.

2 Q All right. So you carried cloth towels, a

3 broom and a dust mop with you when you worked as a

4 casino porter?

5 A Yes. We also had a locker as well.

6 Q So what was in the locker?

7 A More towels, glass cleaner, towels for vomit

8 and red bags.

9 Q And what?

I0 A Red bags.

ii Q Red bags?

12 A For -- for throw-ups.

13 Q Anything else~.

14 A No, not that I can remember.

15 Q So when you saw a larger spill on the floor

16 at the Venetian and called for help, did that usually

17 mean that someone would come to the spill with a mop?

18 A Yes, with a bucket.

19 Q So for the larger spills, someone would come

20 by and clean it up with a mop and a bucket; is that

21 right?

22 A Yes, uh-huh. And also the security would be

23 close by.

24 Q      All right. So what I’m trying to get at is,

25 when you talked about calling for help earlier when
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1 you saw a larger spill, that would usually mean that

2 another casino porter would come to the scene of the

3 spill with a mop and a bucket?

4 A Yes. If it was large, we would say: Please

5 send someone with a bucket.

6 Because there are people that have

7 containers with ice and sometimes they drop it on the

8 floor, so we have to call someone.

9 Q Have you ever seen situations where people

I0 spill water on the floor?

ii A Yes, yes. That’s why we are keeping an eye.

12 Otherwise, you have to follow them to see where that

13 spill is coming from.

14 Q What about soft drinks?

15 A Same; we clean.    It’s just the same; we’re

16 cleaning everything.

17 Q But what I’m trying to get at, though, is

18 have you ever seen spills at the Venetian, when you

19 were employed there as a casino porter, involving soft

20 drinks?

21 A No, not that. Mostly water, because people

22 carry some ice coolers.

23 Q Have you ever seen people carrying water

24 bottles?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q So do you actually know where the water

2 would come from? Whether it would come from the ice

3 or whether it would come from a bottle?

4 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.

5 THE WITNESS: No. When the water spill is

6 from a water cooler, you can see the water coming from

7 it.

8 BY MR. GALLIHER:

9 Q When you say water cooler, what do you mean?

i0 A An ice cooler.

II Q So people carry ice coolers over those

12 floors?

13 A Yes.

14 Q Now, have you ever seen anyone use the food

15 court and leave the food court with drinks?

16 A Sometimes, yes.

17 Q And how about the Bouchon Bakery; have you

18 ever seen anyone order drinks from the Bouchon Bakery

19 and leave from it?

20 A No, hu-huh.

21 Q Have you ever seen anyone walk around with

22 liquor or alcohol in a glass or cup?

23 A Everyone does it in the casino; yep.

24 Q So would it be fair to say that you have

25 seen that?
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1 A Oh, yes.

2 Q Now I want you to isolate, on a given

3 shift -- we’ll say the day shift.

4 On the average, what’s your best estimate of

5 how many spills you would see during the day shift

6 when you were a casino porter at the Venetian?

7 A Sometimes I did, but I did not work always

8 at the same station.

9 Q Well, I understand. What I’m looking for is

i0 your best estimate of the number of times on one shift

ii that you would see spills when you were employed at

12 the Venetian.

13 ~R. ROYAL: Object to form.

14 THE WITNESS: At times two or three times.

15 BY MR. GALLIHER:

16 Q Would that be an average?

17 A Yes.

18 Q And we’re talking about spills that would be

19 in the area that you were responsible for?

20 A The floor close to the food court and Lux

21 Care, it’s floor. But there are areas that are

22 carpeted.

23 Q Well, I’m talking strictly about the marble

24 floors.

25 A In rare occasions.

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc._
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite B2oo
LasVegas, NV 89146 (7o~) 419-9676

1536



21

1 Q So are you saying that on rare occasions,

2 you would see spills on the floor, the marble floors,

3 next to the Lux Cafe or the food court?

4 A     Not spills -- spills, but say that someone

5 just dropped a little bit of a soda.

6 Q And if someone dropped a little bit of soda,

7 that’s something that you would clean up?

8 A Yes, yes.

9 Q And why would you do that?

i0 A Because I had to. I was being paid to do

II that.

12 Q And was there a concern about whether or not

13 the floor was dangerous with that little bit of liquid

14 on it?

15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.

16 THE WITNESS: Yes. It also gets stained.

17 BY MR. GALLIHER:

18 Q And is that why you cleaned it up, to

19 protect the customers?

20 A Yes.

21 Q That was your job; right?

22 A Yes, and I would also get tips.

23 Q When you say you get tips, who would give

24 you tips?

25 A The guests, when they say that you are
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1 keeping an eye to make sure that they didn’t fall.

2 Q During your time at the Venetian, had you

3 ever seen a customer fall on liquid on the marble

4 floor?

5 A Yes.

6 Q And how many occasions?

7 A The one I recall is a lady that fell with a

8 coffee.

9 Q And you recall a lady that fell with a

i0 coffee?

ii A Yes.

12 Q And how do you recall that?

13 A Well, we were cleaning and suddenly I think

14 a lady came out with a coffee from a bakery, the

15 Bouchon Bakery on the first floor.

16 Q And so was that a fall that you personally

17 saw?

18 A Well, we saw her fall and we were close by.

19 I had been checking the floor.

20 Q So is that the only time that you’ve seen a

21 customer fall at the Venetian on the marble floor?

22 A Oh, many, but they were drunk.

23 Q So you’ve seen a lot of drunk people fall on

24 the marble floor at the Venetian?

25 A No, just that they had fallen because they
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1 were drunk.

2 Q And how do you know that?

3 A Because you can see it.

4 Q Did you witness those falls?

5 A Yes.

6 Q So how many of these falls did you witness?

7 A Well, about three I would say, the ones that

8 I watched.

9 Q When you saw these people that you described

i0 as drunk fall, were they hurt?

ii A These people were not alone. There were

12 other drinkers.

13 Q All right. But my question is when you saw

14 these people fall, were they hurt?

15 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form.

16 THE WITNESS: I don’t know because we can’t

17 get involved with that. And if they’re drunk, they

18 get up. They are to get up on their own or someone

19 picks them up.

20 BY MR. GALLIHER:

21 Q So it sounds to me like you are saying you

22 don’t know whether they were hurt or not.

23 A Well, no. No.

24 Q Is that right?

25 A Yes, because if they were drunk, they would
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1 just get up and go. We can’t stick our hands in that

2 situation.

3 Q I understand. But you don’t know whether

4 those people, when they got up, were hurt?

5 A No.

6 Q We’re here today basically to -- because

7 we’re involved in a lawsuit as a result of a fall

8 occurring on November 4, 2016. It happened in the

9 early afternoon hours.

I0 A Early wasn’t it?

ii Q Yeah. Do you know?

12 A I was in that morning shift.

13 Q So how is it that you know which fall I’m

14 talking about?

15 A Because I was sent the video.

16 Q And you were sent the video by whom?

17 A I don’t know who.

18 Q So you’ve seen the video showing the fall?

19 A Yes.

20 Q So you didn’t see the fall until you saw the

21 video?

22 A No, I remember that lady.

23 Q Do you remember seeing the lady fall?

24 A Yes.

25 Q All right. So you were sent a video that
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1 showed a fall on November 4, 2016; right?

2 A Yes.

3 Q And you watched the video?

4 A Yes.

5 Q And that fall was a fall that you personally

6 saw when it occurred?

7 A Yes. I was there.

8 Q So when you talked about a fall involving a

9 lady with coffee, is that the fall you were talking

i0 about?

ii A She’s the one.

12 Q So how is it that you determined that she

13 fell carrying coffee?

14 A Because I was there.

15 Q Did anyone discuss this fall with you?

16 A No, but I remember it. But I no longer work

17 at the Venetian.

18 Q I understand. Did you meet with anyone in

19 preparation for today’s deposition?

20 A I just received some documents stating that

21 I had to come.

22 Q Did you -- so you did not meet with anyone

23 to discuss today’s deposition?

24 A     No.

25 Q Did you discuss today’s deposition with
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1 anyone over the telephone?

2 A I was only called and told to be here today.

3 Q So what I’m trying to determine is, where

4 did you form your opinion that the lady was carrying

5 coffee?

6 A Because I know that she was coming from

7 purchasing coffee.

8 Q And you testified that she was coming from

9 purchasing coffee at the Bouchon Bakery; right?

i0 A I think so, because she was coming down next

ii to the area where they sell coffee.

12 Q So you did not discuss your testimony of

13 today’s deposition with anyone before you showed up?

14 A No.

15 Q And I want to make sure I’m clear on this:

16 That you personally witnessed this fall when it

17 happened, separate and apart from what you saw in the

18 video?

19 A Yes.

20 Q So you actually saw the fall twice. You saw

21 the fall in person when it happened and then you saw

22 it again on the video; is that right?

23 A Yes, yes. I was there. I was cleaning in

24 the surroundings.

25 Q When the video was sent to you, was it sent
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1 to you in a letter?

2 A No.

3 Q How was it sent to you?

4 A I don’t know. I received -- no. The next

5 day I received these papers.

6 Q Well, my question was, how was the video

7 sent to you?

8 A I don’t know.

9 Q Well, did you receive it at your home?

I0 A No, my phone.

ii Q All right. So the video that you described

12 was sent to you on your telephone?

13 A Uh-huh, yes.

14 Q And you don’t know who sent it?

15 A No.

16 Q Did the sender identify themselves in any

17 way to tell you who sent it to you?

18 A No. I was only mailed these papers and then

19 I was called from the telephone.

20 Q All right. When you say you were called

21 from the telephone, did the call from the telephone

22 result in the video being sent to you?

23 A I believe so. That’s how I got it.

24 Q So when the person called you on the

25 telephone, did they identify themselves?
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1 A Yes. I was told that it was from here.

2 Q From where?

3 A From this page, what it says on this page.

4 Q So did someone tell you that the video was

5 coming from my office?

6 A No, no.    I didn’t pay attention.    They only

7 send me a video and this letter stating that I had to

8 be here. And I don’t know why I’m involved in this.

9 Q I’m still trying to figure out how you

i0 received the video.

ii So when the person called you on the

12 telephone, did they -- how did they get your telephone

13 number?

14 MR. ROYAL: I’m going to -- I’m sorry -- a

15 belated objection as to form.

16 Go ahead.

17 BY MR. GALLIHER:

18 Q So when the person called, did you ask them

19 how they got your telephone number?

20 A No, but since it was coming from the

21 Venetian, they know my telephone number.

22 Q All right. So then, you knew that the video

23 that was being sent to you on your telephone was

24 coming from the Venetian; is that right?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q So when the person that talked to you on the

2 telephone about this case, did they tell you they were

3 from the Venetian?

4 A Yes. It was from the Venetian, about an

5 accident that happened at the Venetian.

6 Q Did the video that was sent to you, was it

7 accompanied by any type of a message?

8 A No.

9 Q No text or anything of that nature?

I0 A No. I was only sent the video and that

ii paper that I received.

12 Q All right.    So you were sent the video, you

13 were sent the paper, which is the subpoena to today’s

14 deposition.

15 A And I don’t even know why.

16 Q And you weren’t sent anything else?

17 A No. I don’t even know why I’m here.

18 Q So have you understood all my questions

19 today?

20 A Yes.

21 Q Anything you want me to repeat or rephrase

22 for you?

23 A No.

24 ~. GAL~IHER: Pass the witness.

25/////
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1 EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. ROYAL:

3 Q Okay. I just have a few questions for you.

4 A Again?

5 Q I’m going to show you -- strike that.

6 You testified that you saw a video, and I’m

7 going to show you what’s been identified -- I’m not

8 sure how you want to do this, but I’ve got it right

9 here.

I0 MR. GALLIHER: Okay. Just for the record,

Ii you are showing her your -- the video on computer.

12 MR. ROYAL: Exactly.

13 BY MR. ROYAL:

14 Q So it’s been identified as VEN019. And I

15 have a laptop and I’m going to try and turn this so

16 you can see it with the witness as best I can. A

17 little bit tricky here. One second. You can scoot

18 back just a little bit.

19 Okay.    I’m just going to -- and what I’m

20 going to do for the record, I’m just going to indicate

21 numbers so we can identify what we’re looking at.

22 Right now it’s paused.    It’s at 12:31:33 of the -- of

23 the footage.

24 Do you recognize the area?

25 A That’s in front of the Grand Lux Cafe.
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i Q And when you said that you patrolled an

2 area -- strike that. What would this --

3 When you’re assigned to work this area, what

4 would the area be called?

5 A Station 2.

6 Q Okay. And you kind of broadly told us what

7 you did in Station 2. Did that include cleaning the

8 restroom?

9 A No, not -- the bathrooms were something

i0 separate.

Ii Q Okay. So you weren’t cleaning bathrooms?

12 A No, no.

13 Q Do you know who was cleaning bathrooms on

14 the day this happened?

15 A I don’t remember.

16 Q Okay. So if you are not cleaning bathrooms,

17 what was your general job -- strike that. Let me ask

18 it again.

19 Looking at VEN019 at 12:31:33, does this

20 depict an area that you would have been patrolling on

21 the day of the incident?

22 A That’s called the rotunda. It’s a big round

23 circle and then you take the hallway on the way to the

24 corner. Around the corner by security that passes in

25 front of the Grand Lux Cafe, that’s Station 2.

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
665~ W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite ~oo
LasVegas, NV 89146 (702) 419-9676

1547



32

1 Q Okay. Okay. I’m going to let this run

2 starting at 12:33:10, and I’m going to make it go a

3 little bit faster to kind of move it along here.

4 There’s a -- at 12:33:35, there’s a woman

5 approaching a man. He’s looking down. Do you know

6 who that woman is?

7 A No.

8 Q I want you to watch from the left over here.

9 Okay.    It’s 12:33 -- I’m going to go back here, sorry.

i0 12:33:52. I want there’s a woman coming from the

ii left with a broom and so forth.

12 Do you recognize that person?

13 A No. Maybe it was me.

14 Q Well, that’s my question. I want you to

15 watch again.

16 A I think I am.

17 Q Okay.

18 A Yes.

19 Q Do you think that was you?

20 A Yes, it’s me.    It’s me.

21 Q So starting at -- I want to get the times

22 right. So starting at 12:33:52, on the left side

23 that’s a person. You think that’s you?

24 A I think so.

25 Q Okay. And what was -- what did you notice?
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1 What was that person doing?

2 A Me?

3 Q Yeah. What were you doing?

4 A Checking around.

5 Q Okay.

6 A We went to the bathroom to check the towels

7 to get a clean towel.

8 Q Okay. Do you recall, or can you tell

9 watching this at 12:33:52, whether or not you noticed

i0 there was anything on the floor in the area to your

II immediate right?

12 A No, no. I was -- I would have walked right

13 over it.

14 Q You didn’t see anything?

15 A No.

16 Q All right. You were -- okay.

17 I’m going to continue and we’re now moving

18 ahead to about 12:38:40, we’ll call it. There is a

19 woman depicted sitting on the floor and a couple of

20 men in suit jackets.

21 Do you remember this scene as it’s depicted

22 here generally?

23 A You mean where she fell?

24 Q Yes. Do you remember seeing something

25 similar to this?
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1 A That’s not the lady that fell.

2 Q Well, okay. Let’s move to --

3 A Or this is her.

4 Q Okay. At 12:39:37 we see a PAD -- a male

5 PAD person.    Do you know who that is kind of at the

6 top of the screen? Okay. I’m just trying to identify

7 people. Maybe you can’t tell from this.

8 At 12:39:48, do you see yourself?

9 A Yes.

i0 Q Okay. And that’s you on the right?

ii A As I said, the other one is David.

12 Q There is a man with a bucket at 12:39:51.

13 Who is that?

14 A That’s David.

15 Q David Martinez?

16 A Yes, uh-huh.

17 Q Now he’s pointing to someone at 12:40:01.

18 Do you know who that is?

19 A I don’t know.

20 Q Okay. Now, Mr. Martinez, you see him

21 mopping up an area?

22 A But it wasn’t wet there.

23 Q Okay. Do you know -- well, that was my

24 question. You see him -- we’re at 12:40:15. He’s got

25 a bucket.
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1 What’s your recollection of what he was

2 doing at this particular time depicted here on the

3 video?

4 A It seems like she dropped something -- she

5 spilled some coffee.

6 Q Okay. Did you actually see anything on the

7 floor?

8 A No.

9 Q And then I’m going to fast-forward a little

i0 here. Okay.    I’m going to go back.

ii At 12:41:07, do you see yourself?

12 A Before she fell, you mean?

13 Q No. I’m looking at -- right now it’s at

14 12:41:09, the video. Do you see yourself in the

15 video?

16 A Yes.

17 Q Okay, I’m going to let it run now. What are

18 you doing?

19 A Drying whatever the other one has been

20 cleaning.

21 Q Okay. So just tell me the process. You’ve

22 got a towel on the floor that you are using under your

23 foot.

24 A To dry whatever. To dry whatever is being

25 wet by the other one with a bucket, but there was

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc:
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite
LasVegas, NV 89146 (7o2) 419-9676

1551



36

1 nothing there.

2 Q I see, okay.

3 So when Mr. Martinez goes over an area with

4 a mop, your job was to follow with a dry towel?

5 A Well, yes. At that moment, yes.

6 Q Okay. Now I’m going to go back. I’m going

7 to go back to -- okay. I’m going to go back to

8 12:36:49 and I want you to watch. I’m going to start

9 it.

i0 A They are in suits.

ii Q Is that something that you recall seeing,

12 what we just watched there? I stopped it at 12:36:58.

13 A Yes. I remember the lady falling.

14 Q Did you ever talk to the lady who was --

15 A No, you can’t. You can’t.

16 Q Do you remember hearing any conversations

17 between the lady who fell and anyone else as you were

18 at the scene?

19 A No, because the security guards are the ones

20 that speak to them.

21 Q Okay. You didn’t hear any of the

22 conversation?

23 A No.

24 Q Now, I heard you say something about shoes.

25 A Some people fake falls to get something,
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1 but...

2 Q Okay. So...

3 A What happened to -- the floor right there

4 you see is waxed.

5 THE COURT REPORTER: I’m sorry, I’m having a

6 hard time.

7 THE INTERPRETER:    "It was waxed."

8 THE COURT REPORTER: Could you repeat the

9 whole response?

i0 MR. ROYAL: Well, I don’t think there’s a

ii question pending, but go ahead.

12 THE WITNESS: The floor is heavy with wax

13 right there.

14 BY MR. ROYAL:

15 Q Okay. Now, do you remember cleaning the

16 area beyond what we watched on the video as you

17 remember what you did?

18 A Yes. We clean the entire surroundings.

19 People left beer, soda, coffee.

20 Q When you say the entire surroundings, what

21 were you making reference to?

22 A Well, look, we have to be careful going

23 around this column because the floor -- everything

24 that has to do with cleaning.

25 Q Well, okay.    I just want to make sure. I’m
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1 going to show you -- I’m just going to show this.    I’m

2 not going to run it at 12:43:17.

3 Okay. You mentioned something about beer,

4 sodas and so forth. What are you making reference to?

5 A Right there at the corner, people leave beer

6 cans, soda cans, so we have to clean it.

7 Q I meant in what we’re looking at at

8 12:43:17. Do you see any beer cans or soda cans

9 there?

i0 A No, no. No, but this is the least busy

Ii time.

12 Q Okay. All right. I just want to focus on

13 this time.     So I’m clear with my question, do you

14 remember completing the task of cleaning up this area

15 or working with David Martinez after the woman got up

16 and left?

17 A Well, yes. It was cleaned. We had to clean

18 because she spilled coffee.

19 Q Okay. Other than her -- the woman spilling

20 coffee, did you see anything else on the floor when

21 you were cleaning after she fell?

22 A No, but we have to check everything anyway.

23 Q Okay. Now, earlier when you’re talking

24 about equipment, I heard you say you have cleaners,

25 towels, broom and dust pans.
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1 A Yes.

2 Q Okay. Because I made a note here that I was

3 confused whether you had a dust pan or dust mop.

4 A Dust pan.

5 Q So when I showed that video of you earlier

6 walking around the area when you were carrying some

7 things, can you tell us what you had in your hands?

8 A Dust pan and a broom.

9 Q Okay. You were also asked about the tower.

I0 Does that area have, like, the bridge? Does that have

ii a bridge that goes over the Las Vegas Boulevard?

12 A No.

13 Q I wasn’t clear what you meant by "tower." I

14 know there’s a bell tower or a clock tower.

15 A I was talking about the small tower where

16 there was sun coming in.

17 Q Oh, I see what you mean.    I see.    I was

18 confused.

19 A And now they have Bouchon Bakery around it,

20 but the restaurant is at the small tower.

21 Q Okay. All right. You were asked earlier

22 about when mops and a bucket would come to an area.

23 And in this particular case, what we just saw in the

24 video was a mop and a bucket came to the area.

25 A David is the one who brought it to see if
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1 there was a big spill.

2 Q Was there a big spill?

3 A No, no, there was not. I had just walked by

4 that area.

5 Q Was there a little spill?

6 A No, no.

7 Q Were there pieces of ice that you found on

8 the floor?

9 A No, no.

i0 Q You testified about drunk people that you

ii have seen in the past fall.

12 A Yes.

13 Q For any of those people, do you recall

14 inquiring as to why they fell?

15 A No. What for? They drink and then they

16 fall and then between each other, they pick up each

17 other. They usually are not alone.

18 Q Okay. And I want to make sure I understand.

19 When you were asked about falls and you said the lady

20 that fell with coffee, is that the lady that we saw in

21 the video that I showed you that’s been marked as

22 YEN019?

23 A Yes. I remember the lady falling.

24 Q And that’s the lady you were making

25 reference to?
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1 A Yes. It’s the most recent. She’s the one

2 that I remember.

3 MR. ROYAL: Thanks.    I’ll pass.

4

5 FURTHER EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. GALLIHER:

7 Q I heard you remark during your testimony in

8 response to Mr. Royal’s question, some people, they

9 fall to get something. What did you mean by that?

i0 A Sometimes they look like they fall.

ii Q And is that what you saw in the video,

12 someone who looked like they fell?

13 A I don’t know     I don’t know her intentions,

14 but there was no water there.

15 Q Did she look like she fell or not?

16 A Yes, she slips, but it must have been her

17 shoe. It wasn’t water.

18 Q And you mentioned also that the area where

19 the fall happened had been heavily waxed. What did

20 you mean by that?

21 A I wasn’t talking about that area in

22 particular. Those floors are cleaned every night.

23 Q Are they waxed every night?

24 A No, no. They clean them with a machine.

25 Q And that’s every night?
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1 A No. I don’t recall.

2 Q Do you know one way or the other?

3 A Yes, they do it.

4 Q So as I understand what you are saying, you

5 never saw anything liquid on the floor where the fall

6 happened at any time that day; is that right?

7 MR. ROYAL: I object. Misstates testimony.

8 THE WITNESS: No, no, that is correct.

9 BY MR. GALLIHER:

i0 Q All right.    So you didn’t see any water on

ii the floor, you didn’t see any coffee on the floor, you

12 didn’t see anything wet on the floor; is that right?

13 A No yes, that is correct

14 Q So the only fluid you saw in connection with

15 this fall on that day was a dry floor?

16 A Yes.    I think what you see is that she

17 slipped, but it was her shoe.

18 Q All right. So your testimony is that she

19 didn’t slip because she hit anything wet, she slipped

20 because of her shoe?

21 A Because of her shoe.

22 Q All right. So the answer to my question is

23 yes?

24 A Yes.

25 Q Thank you. Nothing further.
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1 THE WITNESS: Is that it?

2 MR. ROYAL: Yes. Nothing for me.

3 MR. GALLIHER: Okay, we’re done.    Thank you.

4 (The deposition concluded at 3:09 p.m.)
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1                                      REPORTER’S DECLARATION

2 STATE OF NEVADA)
)

3 COUNTY OF CLARK)

4 I, Pauline C. May, CCR No. 286, declare as

5 follows:

6 That I reported the taking of the deposition of the

7 witness, MARIA CONSUELO CRUZ, commencing on Wednesday,

8 April 17, 2019 at the hour mf 2:00 p.m.

9 That prior to being examined, the witness was by me

i0 duly sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

ii and nothing but the truth.

12 That I thereafter transcribed said shorthand notes

13 into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript

14 of said deposition is a complete, true and accurate

15 transcription of said shorthand notes taken down at

16 said time, and that a request has not been made to

17 review the transcript.

18 I further declare that I am not a relative or

19 employee of counsel of any party involved in said

20 action, nor a relative or employee of the parties

21 involved in said action, nor a person financially

22 interested in the action.

23
.... ~~_~~_V_e~ ~a!~.h.i~ _~_~__~ day of

__<zff_ ....
25 P-~line C. May, CCR 2~6, RPR
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Page 3 Page 5

1 MIKI KUZMANOVIC, SERBIAN INTERPRETER, 1 THE INTERPRETER: On the phone, he had
2 having been first duly sworn to interpret Serbian into 2 someone interpreting over the phone.
3 English and English into Serbian, interpreted as 3 BY MR. GALLIHER:
4 follows: 4 Q All right. So who was the person who
5 MILAN GRAOVAC, 5 interpreted over the phone?
6 having been first duly sworn to tell the truth, the 6 A The girl, I don’t know the name. Just a
7 whole truth and nothing but the truth, was examined 7 girl that was interpreting. Her name, I don’t
8 and testified as follows: 8 remember.
9 9 Q Did you arrange for the girl to be on the

10 EXAMINATION 10 phone to interpret, or someone else?
11 BY MR. GALL1HER: 11 A I asked for interpreter because I’m not very
12 Q Would you state your name, please. 12 good in English, so they arrange it.
13 A Milan Graovac. M-i-l-a-n. Last name, 13 Q When you say "they," you are referring to
14 G-r-a-o-v-a-c. 14 Mr. Royal’s office?
15 Q Your address. 15 A Where I was. If that’s his office, that’s
16 A 7660 West Eldorado, Apartment Number 140. 1 6 where it was. I’m not sure.
17 ZIP code is 89113. 17 Q And how long were you in the office
18 Q Is that in Las Vegas? 18 preparing for your deposition?
19 A Yes. 19 A What I was asked, I answered, and it was
2 0 Q Have you ever had your deposition taken 2 0 maybe half an hour to 40 minutes at most.
21 before? 21 Q So your preparation consisted of meeting
22 A No. 2 2 with Mr. Royal, having an interpreter present,
23 Q Do you understand that you are under oath 2 3 responding to the questions and reviewing surveillance
24 today? 24 video; is that right?
2 5 A Yes. 2 5 A That’s correct.

Page 4 Page 6

1    Q And the oath you’ve been given today carries 1 Q How long have you worked at the Venetian?
2 with it the same solemnity as if you were testifying 2 A Twenty years.
3 in court before a judge or a jury? 3 Q And when you started at the Venetian, what
4 A Yes. 4 was your job title?
5 Q And it also carries with it the penalties of 5 A Casino porter.
6 perjury. Do you understand that? 6 Q Is that still your job title?
7 A Yes, I understand. 7 A Yes, it is.
8 Q How did you prepare for today’s deposition? 8 Q Have you remained with your same job title
9 A As soon as I got the paper, what I know I’ll 9 over the past 20 years?

10 tell you and what 1 don’t, I don’t. 10 A Yes, it is.
11 Q Did you meet with anyone before today’s 11 Q In reviewing the surveillance video of this
12 deposition to prepare? 12 fail, did you see yourself?.
13 A Yes, I met with the gentleman. He showed me 13 A Yes, I have. When I was watching it, I saw
14 the picture of what happened and that’s all. 14 myself.
15 Q All right. You said you met with the 15 Q Did you actually see the fall happen?
1 6 gentleman, who was the gentleman in the room with us?16 A When I was watching the video, then I saw
17 A Yes, it is. 17 the fall. But they called us when there was a spill.
18 Q That would be Mr. Royal and you say he 18 Q And when you say "they called us," do you
19 showed you a picture, ls that what we call the 19 know who called you?
20 surveillance video? 20 A My supervisor.
2 1 A Yes, it is. 21 Q Who is your supervisor?
2 2 Q And when you met with Mr. Royal, did you 22 A Maybe Dina or somebody. They change them
2 3 bring your interpreter with you? 2 3 every six months to a year.
2 4 A It was a megaphone connected. 2 4 Q You said Dina?
25 Q Awhat? 25 A Dina.

3 (Pages 3 to 6)
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Page 7 Page 9

1 Q Isthat a male or female? 1 one.
2 A Female. 2 Q So in your 20 years, have you only used a
3 Q And you see the video. You are the person 3 mop once on a spill?
4 in the video that’s holding the mop. 4 A If it’s soaked, then we wipe it up and then
5 A Yes. My colleague was holding it. 5 we take a small mop to go over it. For that
6 Q All right, so your colleague was holding the 6 particular time, it wasn’t needed to do that.
7 mop? 7 Q So I’m trying to get the answer.
8 A Yes. 8 During the 20 years that you’ve worked at
9 Q So what did you do at the scene? 9 the Venetian, have you only cleaned up one spill with

10 A When the spill happens, they called for us 10 a mop?
11 to come immediately. If we don’t have the equipment11 THE INTERPRETER: He still didn’t answer
12 that we need to clean it, we got to stand there so 12 your question. He said: People walk around with a
13 nobody else -- nobody falls. 13 cup and they spill. I warn them not to keep spilling
14 Q So did you arrive at the scene before the 14 it and I go over with them with a rag and ! clean it
15 colleague with the mop arrived at the scene? 15 after them.
16 A Yes, I did. 16 Would you like me to explain?
17 Q How long were you at the scene before the 17 BY MR. GALLIHER:
18 colleague with the mop arrived? 18 Q We’ll try a little different. Why is it
19 A Very short. It was couple of minutes. 19 that you immediately clean up the spill at the
2 0 Q Did you make any calls that day? 2 0 Venetian? And I presume you are talking about the
21 A No, I didn’t. They were calling us to come 21 marble floor.
2 2 there and stand there. 2 2 A Yes, marble floor.
2 3 Q And did you bring any equipment with you to2 3 Q And is that because the floor becomes
2 4 the scene? 2 4 dangerous when it’s wet?
2 5 A No, because I don’t know if I was in the 2 5 A They’re very dangerous. Even one drop.

Page 8 Page i0

1 bathroom or just passing by when ! heard that on the1 Q So tell me about that. What makes you think
2 radio, so I came there. And maybe the rag was in my2 it becomes very dangerous with one drop?
3 hand that I was cleaning the machines with. 3 A The shoes, if it’s - you know, the shoes
4 Q So the colleague that arrived with the mop, 4 and contact with the shoes, and the drop of something
5 do you know his name? 5 on marble, it’s like ice. You can slip and fall real
6 A David. I know that his name was David. 6 easy.
7 Q So how long after you arrived at the scene 7 Q Have you, in your 20 years, ever seen
8 did David arrive? 8 anybody slip and fall on a wet spot at the Venetian on
9 A Very short time. 9 the marble floor?

10 Q What did David do with the mop? 10 A No, I have not.
11 A I was standing on the left side next to the 11 Q Go back to the question earlier. During
12 pillar and he was standing on the right side of me.12 your 20 years, on how many occasions have you had to
13 Q And so what did he do with the mop? 13 clean up a spill on the marble floor at the Venetian?
14 A I don’t know if there was a drop of 14 A It’s not every day. When they call us, we
15 something there. He was looking down to see. 15 go and we clean it up.
16 Q Did you see him mop the floor? 16 Q So can you give me your best estimate of,
17 A Yes. 17 say, how many times a week you would clean up a spill
18 Q Did you see him wring out the mop in the 18 at the Venetian on the marble floor?
1 9 pail? 1 9 A Maybe once, maybe not at all. And I’m not
20 A No. 20 the only one.
21 Q Did you see that on the video? 21 Q And I think we had previous testimony
2 2 A Yes. 2 2 regarding the number of PAD workers that were
2 3 Q Have you ever used a mop at the Venetian to2 3 stationed on the marble floors at the ground floor at
2 4 clean up a spill? 2 4 the Venetian.
2 5 A Yes. Not that particular one, but another 2 5 Do you know how many there are?

4 (Pages 7 to I0)
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Page ii Page 13

A On the marble floor? On the cleaning? 1 A In the garage.
Q How many are stationed for the marble floor?2 Q so how long did you work in the garage?
A There’s six or eight stations in the casino. 3 A Six months or three months, you know. It

I’m the only one in my station. 4 depends.
Q And how about the other stations? Do you 5 Q And where else have you worked in the

only have one? 6 Venetian as a PAD employee?
A We have the first shift, second shift and 7 A Casino.

third shift. 8 Q I’m talking about the past five years.
Q How many people are stationed in each 9 A The garage, Las Vegas Boulevard, the casino

station? 10 station and the balconies, casino.
A Just one. 11 Q When you talk about Las Vegas Boulevard,
Q So on the day of this fall, were you 12 what does that mean?

stationed in the restroom? 3. 3 A We have -- towards the Las Vegas Boulevard,
A I think I was. I cannot guarantee. 14 if there’s anything, or any trash or anything, we have
Q How often are you stationed in the restroom15 to clean it up.

as a PAD employee at the Venetian? 16 Q Is that outside work?
A 1 am there nonstop, my eight hours. 17 A Yes, it is.
Q All right. So would it be fair to state 18 Q Okay. So you work outside, you have worked

that in your time at the Venetian as a PAD employee,19 in the garages, you’ve worked in Restroom Number 2 and
you’ve been principally stationed in the restroom?20 then you said you worked in casino stations?

A Not all the time. We were being shifted 21 A Yes, everywhere. We keep rotating.
around like every three months, six months, but now22 Q Is that correct in terms of all the
for a year we’ve been staying in the same place. 23 locations you’ve worked at over the past five years?

Q And when you say you’ve been staying in the24 A Yes, it is.
same place, where is that? 25 Q When you talked about the casino stations,

Page 12 Page 14

A Restroom Number 2. 1 can you tell me where you are positioned when you are
Q And Restroom Number 2 is off the marble 2 working with the casino stations?

flooring in the casino? 3 A Cleaning the machines, carpet, ashtrays for
A Yes, it is. 4 cigarettes, pick up the glasses from the machines, put
Q So you’ve been stationed solely in Restroom 5 them away. If there’s any spill, we clean it up. If

Number 2 over the past year. And did you mention to6 not, not.
me that you were in the restroom at the time that you7 Q When you talk about spills, sounds like when
learned about this fail? ~ you were working at the casino you are talking about

A Most likely I was working then there, but 9 spills on the carpeted areas.
it’s been more than two, two and a half years. 3. 0 A If someone spills something on the carpet,

Q When you say working then there, you mean:2:2 then you got to stand there and the machine -- they
working in.Restroom Number 2? 12 bring the machine to vacuum it and special cleaning so

A Yes. 13 that it’s not wet anywhere there.
Q So we’ll say over the past five years, how 14 Q So when you work in the casino station,

would you allocate the time that you spent as a PAD15 would it be fair to say, when there are spills, the
employee at the Venetian in terms of the restroom 16 spills happen on carpet?
versus other stations? 17 A Yeah. I have to call the supervisor if

A We have like a poker room close by that I go 18 there is a spill to send the machine over.
and I check two bathrooms there and immediately I go19 Q But is it your experience, as a PAD employee
back to my station, and then 1 go to lunch for one 2 0 in the casino station, that when you clean up the
hour and that’s all. 21 spill or someone cleans up the spill, it’s on the

Q Is that your station for the past five 2 2 carpet?
years, you’re stationed in Restroom Number 2? 2 3 A Yes, it is.

A Last one year. I was working in the garage. 2 4 Q So let’s go back to the scene of this fall.
Q Working in where? 2 5 You said you arrived, you were called to the scene.

5 (Pages ii to 14)
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1 Do you remember who called you? 1    A No, I didn’t. The only way to see it, we
2 (Crosstalk.) 2 looked at the video.
3 THE COURT REPORTER: Wait, wait. Your words 3 Q Did you -- did you see any liquid on the
4 are drowning his out. 4 floor after the fall?
5 BY MR. GALLIHER: 5 A I saw some drops from the liquid, I was
6 Q Yeah. Wait until you finish to interpret. 6 telling her, but I’ve seen it on the video as well.
7 I know what you’re trying to do here. 7 Q All right. So you have seen drops of liquid
8 A What I said is, Dina or some other 8 on the floor when you came to the scene of the fall?
9 supervisor -- but I know it was some other supervisor 9 A Yes, and they were reaching a little bit to

10 who called. I didn’t remember the name. 10 the carpet as well.
11 Q When you arrived at the scene, did you do 11 Q All right. So but you don’t know where that
12 anything in terms of cleaning up the spill or anything 12 liquid came from?
13 of that nature? 13 A It cannot come from anywhere except from
14 A I couldn’t clean anything because she was 14 her. Yeah, you could see when she was there and the
15 still sitting on the floor. 15 other guests are walking by, if there was a little
16 Q So the answer to my question is you didn’t 16 more of liquid, some other guest could have slipped.
17 do anything to clean up anything that day? 17 Q But do you know whether there was any liquid
18 A Nothing. We cannot touch it until the 18 on the floor before she fell?
19 person is moved from there. 19 A You cannot see it because she was on the
20 Q And the only person you saw clean it up is 20 floor sitting, so you can’t see it whether it was or
21 David? 21 not.
22 A David was cleaning it behind her back, but 22 Q So the answer to my question is, you don’t
23 we couldn’t see anything there. The mop was kind of 23 know whether there was any liquid on the floor before
24 dry. 24 the fall.’?
25 Q And so did you actually watch David clean 25 A That’s -- I couldn’t have seen anything

Page 16 Page 18

1 the floor? 1 then.
2 A Yes, I did. 2 Q All right. I want to make sure we’re clear
3 Q So you then saw David take his mop and put 3 on this.
4 it in the bucket and wring it out? 4 A I am sure on myself.
5 A No, no. 5 Q All right. So you do not know, as you
6 Q You didn’t see that? 6 testify here today, whether there was any liquid on
7 A No. 7 the floor before the fall?
8 Q Did you see it on the video? 8 A I don’t know.
9 A I think I have seen it, but I can’t really 9 Q All right. How long did you remain at the

10 recallit. 10 scene?
11 Q What else did you do at the scene other than 11 A I didn’t stay much there because David was
12 stand there? 12 there. I left the scene.
13 A I didn’t do anything because I didn’t see 13 Q So did you leave the scene after David
14 anything that I needed to do. But there’s a 14 arrived?
15 possibility that when she’s carrying her own glass, 15 A Yes. He came with a mop and I left.
16 that something could have spilled from her own glass.16 Q So how long after David arrived did you
17 Q And what glass was she carrying? 17 leave?
18 A I think that she was carrying the white 18 A Very short time.
19 plastic glass, from what I’ve seen on the picture. 19 Q Were you there when the EMT security guard
2 0 Q And how is it that you assumed that she was2 0 arrived?
23_ carrying a glass and that’s what resulted in water or23_ A No, I don’t think I was there.
22 liquid on the floor? 22 Q Did you leave your name with anyone?
23 A When she was falling in the picture, she 23 A No.
24 threw away the glass from her hand. 24 Q Did anybody contacted you after the date of
25 Q Did you see the top come off the cup? 25 the fall to get a statement from you?

6 (Pages 15 to 18)
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A One time I went to see the -- to view the 1 When people are walking around with a glass
footage, if I can remember anything, and that was such 2 in their hand, they are looking around and a lot of
a long time ago. But no. 3 times they accidentally, you know, turn the glass and

Q So when did you go review the footage? 4 start spilling. So we have to remind them to watch it
A Three or four months ago. 5 so that whatever they have, they don’t spill around.
Q And it was at somewhere other than 6 Q And that’s because one drop on a marble

Mr. Royal’s office? 7 floor at the Venetian makes it extremely dangerous?
A This gentleman wasn’t there. It was just a 8 MR. ROYAL: Objection, foundation.

secretary and in the office. 9 Go ahead.
Q What office? 10 THE WITNESS: Very dangerous.
A This gentleman’s office; yes. 11 MR. GALLIHER: Pass the witness.
Q So you went to Mr. Royai’s office and you 12

watched the video with the secretary present? 13 EXAMINATION
A Well, where the secretary is sitting, that’s 14 BY MR. ROYAL:

where I -- 15 Q When you reviewed footage of the incident,
Q But that was at Mr. Royal’s office? 16 did you have to leave the Venetian property?
A Where I was sitting with him, it was a 17 A I continued to work after.

different office. 18 Q Okay. Today you are at a deposition. Did
Q Was it the same location? 19 you drive here?
A Same location. 20 A Yes, I have.
Q So apart from the two times you’ve seen the 21 Q When you reviewed video either of the times

surveillance video at Mr. Royal’s office, have you 2 2 that you referenced in your responses to
seen it anywhere else? 2 3 Mr. Galliher’s questions, did you ever have to drive

A No. Just with him at this office and the 2 4 and leave the property?
lady’s office. 2 5 A After I finished work, I drive home.

Page 20 Page 22

1    Q Have you told me everything you can remember 1 Q Okay. Okay. When you first arrived at the
2 about the fall and your involvement in it? 2 scene -- strike that. You know what? Hold on, strike
3 A Everything. 3 that.
4 Q Is there anything else that you can recall 4 I’m going to show you what has been
5 about the fall that we haven’t talked about? 5 identified as VEN019, and this is a video and it’s at
6 A I wouldn’t have anything, and I wouldn’t 6 12:39:34.
7 want to add anything that I’m not sure of and that I 7 MR. GALL1HER: Ifhe’s going to commentate,
8 don’t know about. 8 1 think we need to know what you’re saying.
9 Q Have you understood all my questions today? 9 THE INTERPRETER: I’m going to come from the

10 A Yes, yes, I understood questions and my 10 left side.
11 translation. 11 BY MR. ROYAL:
12 Q And any questions you want me to repeat or 12 Q So wait for a question. All right. At
13 rephrase for you? 13 12:39:34, I’m going to start this. I want you to
14 A Not really. What bugs me is when somebody 14 watch for yourself, okay? I stopped it at three --
15 falls and won’t move from that spot until security 15 sorry -- 12:39:36. Can you see yourself?.
16 comes so that we can see if there is any water or 16 A Yes, right here.
17 anything there. 17 Q Is that you in a PAD uniform?
18 Q So what if that person is injured to the 18 A Yes, it is.
19 point where they were unable to move? 19 Q And there’s a column to your right in at
2 0 A Then they should sit and wait and see who’s 2 0 least what’s depicted here?
21 spilled that, whether it’s their spill or somebody 21 A Yes, it is.
2 2 else. 2 2 Q Do you see a woman on the floor?
2 3 Q And is that what the lady you saw on the 2 3 A Yes.
2 4 floor did in this case? 2 4 Q As you look at this, does this refresh your
2 5 A She was waiting for security and I left. 2 5 memory about anything you’ve testified to?

7 (Pages 19 to 22)
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1 A Yes, it does. 1 stand there so that nobody goes into it.
2 Q In what way? 2 Q Okay. Now at 12:40:04, you have now left.
3 A That when I came, I saw that she was 3 A Yes, to my station.
4 sitting. I was bending my head to look at the spill 4 Q Okay. Now, David’s mop at that point is in
5 and I didn’t see any at all where I’m looking at. 5 the area where you are pointing with your foot
6 Q Did you look anywhere else in this area for 6 earlier.
7 a spill? "7 A Yes, it is.
8 A That part, the part over there, I couldn’t 8 Now he’s draining it.
9 see it. 9 Q Okay. So at any time, do you specifically

1 (3 Q Okay. -1 (3 recall seeing something on the floor other than the
3-1 A I’m moving. 3_ 3-woman sitting?
3-2 Q Hold on. I’m going to let it run from that -12 A Not really. The only thing it could be was
3-3 point. I’m going to stop it at 12:39:51. 3_3 that there was a little -- a little spill from a glass
3- 4 Do you see David? 3- 4 that would be on the floor.
-1.5 A I think that’s David there. 3- 5 Q What glass do you have -- but did you
16 Q Okay. And that would be at the top right 1 ~ actually see anything on the floor?
17 area of this stopped video? 1"7 A When I came there, only her spill would be
3_ 8 A Yeah. l 8 from the white coffee or something.
19 Q Do you see someone else from PAD there? 3- 9 Q Did you talk with Maria or David after the
20 A I think Maria is her name. 2 (3 incident?
21 Q Okay. Do you know Maria’s last name? 2 3- A No. We don’t talk about that.
2 2 A No. On the last name, I don’t. 2 2 Q You said you worked in the casino area and
2 3 Q I’m going to now run it a little further. 2 3 there’s a lot of carpet. Is there also a marble floor
24 I’m going to stop it at 12:39:55. 24 that goes through the casino area?
2 5 A They took a mop and they started to clean. 2 5 A Marble is usually when you’re going towards

Page 24 Page 26

See how he’s bending his head looking for a spill? 1 the exit or to front desk or sports book.
Q Okay. You are still there at 12:39:53? 2 Q ! see. When you were working Restroom 2, I
A Yes, I am. 3 think you testified that you also do poker the
Q 55, I should say. 4 restroom.

Were you watching David mop at this time? 5 A Yes. That’s the same job that I have.
A I was standing there so nobody walks into it 6 Q Okay. And how far away are the restrooms

to protect the area. 7 between the poker rooms and the one by the Grand Lux
Q Okay. Did you see anything on the floor 8 in the casino area?

where David was mopping at this particular point, at 9 A Three or four machines, maybe one table, and
12:39:55? 10 then I move into poker room about 20 yards, my first

A We have to check and then go over it just in 11 room on the right.
case there is something. 12 When I finish with that one, I go further

Q Okay. Starting again, okay. I’m going to 13 forward on the corner on the left, and then further
stop it at 12:40:01. You were just doing something 14 forward on the right side. I check what I need to do,
with your foot. Do you recall? I’m going to go 15 I have some paper and then I go back.
backward. 1 6 Q I see, okay. In between the two restrooms,

A I was showing that there was a little bit 17 as you walk in between, do you have any kind of
there where it had spilled from her glass. 18 responsibility?

Q Okay. So at 12:39:57, I’m going to start 19 A If I see anything in the way of spill or
it. I want you to watch yourself. 2 0 dirty papers or anything, I’m supposed to take care of

A Okay. 21 it. I need to clean it up.
Q Pointing with your foot. I’ll stop it at 2 2 Q In your experience in your 20 years at the

12:40:01. Do you remember having a conversation with2 3 Venetian as a PAD employee, what are some of the
David? 2 4 reasons that you have to use a mop as a PAD employee?

A Yeah. What I said was -- and he told me to 2 5 A To pick up spill and clean it so

8 (Pages 23 to 26)
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1 everything’s okay. 1    Q Is the poker room carpeted?
2 Q Do you use a mop in the bathrooms? 2    A Yes. There’s one circle of marble and,
3 A Yes. 3 yeah, it’s a combination. They’re like little squares
4 Q Do you only use it in the bathroom if 4 of marble and then carpet and so on, repeated like
5 there’s a spill, or do you use it for other reasons? 5 that.
6 A The complete cleaning for the floor and 6 Q How about where the players walk and sit?
7 everything. 7 A That’s carpet there.
8 Q In your experience as a Venetian PAD 8 Q And would that also be true of the casino?
9 employee, how important is it to you to maintain the9 A Where the machines are, the casino, yes, and

10 floors in the course of your duties? 10 tables too.
11 MR. GALL1HER: Objection, foundation. 11 Q So wherever the players walk or sit is
12 But you can answer. 12 carpeted in the casino?
13 THE WITNESS: To me, it’s the most important13 A Yes.
14 because of the company and because of me so that14 Q I think you testified earlier that as a PAD
15 nobody can fall down. 15 employee, you’ve used a mop on a number of occasions;
1 6 BY MR. ROYAL: 1 6 is that right?
17 Q All right. And you saw the woman on the 17 A That mop that we use when there’s a spill
18 floor when you got to the scene? 18 outside of the bathroom. But if it’s being used in
19 A Yes. 19 the bathroom, it’s not being used outside of the
2 0 Q How many times have you seen that occur in2 0 bathroom.
21 your 20 years? 21 Q I want to make sure we’re clear on this. In
2 2 A Maybe I’ve seen a couple of times. It 2 2 your 20 years, you’ve presumed you’ve used a mop in
2 3 doesn’t happen to all the stations. I can be here and2 3 your 20 years as PAD employee.
2 4 it could happen half of the casino, so I don’t go all 2 4 A If something dirty. There’s no people, no
2 5 the way there to look. 2 5 spill, I’ve never used it.

Page 28 Page 30

1 Q I’m just asking about what you have 1 Q So let’s try this again. In your 20 years
2 personally seen. 2 as a PAD employee at the Venetian, have you used a mop
3 A Personally that I’ve seen, maybe two times. 3 and a bucket?
4 Q All right. Would this be one of those two 4 A I always use it in the bathroom and then if
5 times? 5 there’s aspill outside.
6 A I’m including this time as the second time. 6 Q So on how many occasions would you say
7 Q All right. Thank you. 7 you’ve used your mop and bucket in the last 20 years?
8 8 A When I’m working in the bathroom, 1 use it
9 FURTHER EXAMINATION 9 more than five times a day, maybe 10 times a day

10 BY MR. GALLIHER: 10 because of urinary.
11 Q So let me clarify this. So in the 20 years 11 Q And so when we talk about using it in the
12 you’ve worked at the Venetian as a PAD employee, you12 bathroom, you’ve used the mop to clean up liquids?
13 have seen two falls on the marble floors with liquid? 13 A Yes.
14 A That’s for sure. Two times, but not more. 14 Q And then after you clean up the liquids,
15 Q Two times at the most? 15 what do you do with the mop and your bucket?
1 6 A From all these 20 years that since I started 16 A I wash it in a bucket, l change the water.
17 working. 17 Q Do you wring out the mop?
18 Q And you’ve never seen or heard of any other 18 A Of course.
19 falls, other than the two that you’ve witnessed, of 19 MR. GALLIHER: Pass the witness.
2 0 the marble? 20 THE WITNESS: I can’t allow it if somebody
21 A Only what I see with my eyes I believe it’s 21 falls, then I carry it on myself.
22 true, but not what else you talk about. 22
2 3 Q All right. So I want to make sure we’re 2 3 FURTHER EXAMINATION
2 4 clear. Two falls at the most? 2 4 BY MR. ROYAL:
2 5 A At the most, me personally with my eyes. 2 5    Q In the times you’ve used -- or strike that.

9 (Pages 27 to 30)
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1 Do you also use a mop to clean up scuffs? 1 wearing; right?
2 A Yeah. You have to clean it. 2 A No, I don’t. And I cannot even ask.
3 Q Have you ever used a mop as a precautionary3 MR. GALLIHER: Thank you. Nothing further.
4 measure? 4 MR. ROYAL: That’s it for me.
5 MR. GALLIHER: Objection, vague. 5 MR. GALLIHER: All right. Thanks very much,
6 You may answer. 6 sir.
7 THE WITNESS: If there’s anything dirty, any 7 (The deposition concluded at 3:35 p.m.)
8 spill, I have to. I cannot leave it dirty anywhere. 8
9 BY MR. ROYAL: 9

10 Q You don’t -- you don’t -- when David was 10
11 using a mop in this case or in this instance, when you11
12 arrived at the scene, you didn’t see what he was 12
13 mopping up; correct? 13
14 A If there was a spill, I guarantee that I 14
15 would have seen it. If it was a lot of spill, yeah, 15
16 you would have seen a lot of spill. 16
17 If they spill a big glass, it would be the 17
18 size of half of this table, the area. 18
19 Q Okay. You didn’t see -- strike that. 19
2 0 Did you see anything that looked like water 20
21 in the area on the floor when you were there? 21
22 A No. 22
23 MR. ROYAL: That’s it. 23
24 24
25 ///// 25

Page 32

1 FURTHER EXAMINATION
2 BY MR. GALLIHER:
3 Q But a little spot of water at that location
4 would have made that lady fall; right?
5 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form; calls for
6 speculation.
7 BY MR. GALLIHER:
8 Q You may answer.
9 A Depends on the shoes.

10 Q So what would make a difference in her
11 shoes?
12 A Some shoes that are easily -- you slip with.
13 Q Some shoes that would easily slip on a spot
14 of water?
15 A One drop you can slip if the shoe is not
16 good.
17 Q So one drop you can slip on the shoes on the
18 marble floor at the Venetian if the shoe wasn’t good?
19 MR. ROYAL: Objection, foundation.
20 THE WITNESS: Yes, you could.
21 BY MR. GALLIHER:
22 Q So did you look carefully at this lady’s
23 shoes?
24 A No.
25 Q So you don’t know what shoes she was

i0 (Pages 31 to 33)
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1 REPORTER’S DECLARATION

2 STATE OF NEVADA)
)

3 COUNTY OF CLARK)

4 I, Pauline C. May, CCR No. 286, declare as

5 follows:

6     That I reported the taking of the deposition of the

7 witness, MILAN GRAOVAC, commencing on Monday,

8 April 22, 2019 at the hour of 2:40 p.m.

9     That prior to being examined, the witness was by me

i0 duly sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

ii and nothing but the truth.

12     That I thereafter transcribed said shorthand notes

13 into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript

14 of said deposition is a complete, true and accurate

15 transcription of said shorthand notes taken down at

16 said time, and that a request has not been made to

17 review the transcript.

18     I further declare that I am not a relative or

19 employee of counsel of any party involved in said

20 action, nor a relative or employee of the parties

21 involved in said action, nor a person financially

22 interested in the action.

23 Dated at Las Vegas, Nevada this day of
, 2019.

24

25 Pauline C. May, CCR 286, RPR
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1 DISTRICT COURT

2 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

3

C !{TIFIED
5 JOYCE SEKERA, an Individual,

6 Plaintiff,
Case No. A-18-772761-C

7 vs. Dept. 25

8 VENETIAN CASINO RESORT, LLC,
d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,

9 a Nevada Limited Liability
Company; LAS VEGAS SANDS, LLC

i0 d/b/a THE VENETIAN LAS VEGAS,
a Nevada Limited Liability

ii Company; YET UNKNOWN EMPLOYEE;
DOES I through X, inclusive,

12
Defendants.
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19

20

21

22

23

24
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25 CCR 286,    RPR

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc._
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite B2oo
LasVegas, NV 89146 (702) 419-9676

1576



2
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4 Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
(702)735-0049

5

6 For the Defendants: MICHAEL A. ROYAL, ESQ.
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1 MIKI KUZMANOVIC, SERBIAN INTERPRETER,

2 having been first duly sworn to interpret Serbian into

3 English and English into Serbian, interpreted as

4 follows:

5 MILAN GRAOVAC,

6 having been first duly sworn to tell the truth, the

7 whole truth and nothing but the truth, was examined

8 and testified as follows:

9

i0 EXAMINATION

ii BY MR. GALLIHER:

12 Q Would you state your name, please.

13 A Milan Graovac. M-i-l-a-n. Last name,

14 G-r-a-o-v-a-c.

15 Q Your address.

16 A 7660 West Eldorado, Apartment Number 140.

17 ZIP code is 89113.

18 Q Is that in Las Vegas?

19 A Yes.

20 Q Have you ever had your deposition taken

21 before?

22 A No.

23 Q Do you understand that you are under oath

24 today?

25 A Yes.
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1 Q And the oath you’ve been given today carries

2 with it the same solemnity as if you were testifying

3 in court before a judge or a jury?

4 A Yes.

5 Q And it also carries with it the penalties of

6 perjury. Do you understand that?

7 A Yes, I understand.

8 Q How did you prepare for today’s deposition?

9 A As soon as I got the paper, what I know I’ll

i0 tell you and what I don’t, I don’t.

ii Q Did you meet with anyone before today’s

12 deposition to prepare?

13 A Yes, I met with the gentleman. He showed me

14 the picture of what happened and that’s all.

15 Q All right. You said you met with the

16 gentleman, who was the gentleman in the room with us?

17 A Yes, it is.

18 Q That would be Mr. Royal and you say he

19 showed you a picture. Is that what we call the

20 surveillance video?

21 A Yes, it is.

22 Q And when you met with Mr. Royal, did you

23 bring your interpreter with you?

24 A It was a megaphone connected.

25 Q A what?

Canyon Court Reporting, Inc:
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1 THE INTERPRETER: On the phone, he had

2 someone interpreting over the phone.

3 BY MR. GALLIHER:

4 Q All right. So who was the person who

5 interpreted over the phone?

6 A The girl, I don’t know the name. Just a

7 girl that was interpreting. Her name, I don’t

8 remember.

9 Q Did you arrange for the girl to be on the

i0 phone to interpret, or someone else?

ii A I asked for interpreter because I’m not very

12 good in English, so they arrange it.

" you are referring to13 Q When you say "they,

14 Mr. Royal’s office?

15 A Where I was.    If that’s his office, that’s

16 where it was.    I’m not sure.

17 Q And how long were you in the office

18 preparing for your deposition?

19 A What I was asked, I answered, and it was

20 maybe half an hour to 40 minutes at most.

21 Q So your preparation consisted of meeting

22 with Mr. Royal, having an interpreter present,

23 responding to the questions and reviewing surveillance

24 video; is that right?

25 A That’s correct.
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1 Q How long have you worked at the Venetian?

2 A Twenty years.

3 Q And when you started at the Venetian, what

4 was your job title?

5 A Casino porter.

6 Q Is that still your job title?

7 A Yes, it is.

8 Q Have you remained with your same job title

9 over the past 20 years?

I0 A Yes, it is.

ii Q In reviewing the surveillance video of this

12 fall, did you see yourself?

13 A Yes, I have. When I was watching it, I saw

14 myself.

15 Q Did you actually see the fall happen?

16 A When I was watching the video, then I saw

17 the fall. But they called us when there was a spill.

18 Q And when you say "they called us," do you

19 know who called you?

20 A My supervisor.

21 Q Who is your supervisor?

22 A Maybe Dina or somebody. They change them

23 every six months to a year.

24 Q You said Dina?

25 A Dina.
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1 Q Is that a male or female?

2 A Female.

3 Q And you see the video. You are the person

4 in the video that’s holding the mop.

5 A Yes. My colleague was holding it.

6 Q All right, so your colleague was holding the

7 mop?

8 A Yes.

9 Q So what did you do at the scene?

i0 A When the spill happens, they called for us

ii to come immediately. If we don’t have the equipment

12 that we need to clean it, we got to stand there so

13 nobody else -- nobody falls.

14 Q So did you arrive at the scene before the

15 colleague with the mop arrived at the scene?

16 A Yes, I did.

17 Q How long were you at the scene before the

18 colleague with the mop arrived?

19 A Very short. It was couple of minutes.

20 Q Did you make any calls that day?

21 A No, I didn’t. They were calling us to come

22 there and stand there.

23 Q And did you bring any equipment with you to

24 the scene?

25 A No, because I don’t know if I was in the
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1 bathroom or just passing by when I heard that on the

2 radio, so I came there. And maybe the rag was in my

3 hand that I was cleaning the machines with.

4 Q So the colleague that arrived with the mop,

5 do you know his name?

6 A David. I know that his name was David.

7 Q So how long after you arrived at the scene

8 did David arrive?

9 A Very short time.

i0 Q What did David do with the mop?

ii A I was standing on the left side next to the

12 pillar and he was standing on the right side of me.

13 Q And so what did he do with the mop?

14 A I don’t know if there was a drop of

15 something there. He was looking down to see.

16 Q Did you see him mop the floor?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Did you see him wring out the mop in the

19 pail?

20 A No.

21 Q Did you see that on the video?

22 A Yes.

23 Q Have you ever used a mop at the Venetian to

24 clean up a spill?

25 A Yes. Not that particular one, but another
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1 one.

2 Q So in your 20 years, have you only used a

3 mop once on a spill?

4 A If it’s soaked, then we wipe it up and then

5 we take a small mop to go over it. For that

6 particular time, it wasn’t needed to do that.

7 Q So I’m trying to get the answer.

8 During the 20 years that you’ve worked at

9 the Venetian, have you only cleaned up one spill with

i0 a mop?

ii THE INTERPRETER: He still didn’t answer

12 your question. He said: People walk around with a

13 cup and they spill     I warn them not to keep spilling

14 it and I go over with them with a rag and I clean it

15 after them.

16 Would you like me to explain?

17 BY MR. GALLIHER:

18 Q We’ll try a little different. Why is it

19 that you immediately clean up the spill at the

20 Venetian? And I presume you are talking about the

21 marble floor.

22 A Yes, marble floor.

23 Q And is that because the floor becomes

24 dangerous when it’s wet?

25 A They’re very dangerous. Even one drop.
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1 Q So tell me about that. What makes you think

2 it becomes very dangerous with one drop?

3 A The shoes, if it’s -- you know, the shoes

4 and contact with the shoes, and the drop of something

5 on marble, it’s like ice. You can slip and fall real

6 easy.

7 Q Have you, in your 20 years, ever seen

8 anybody slip and fall on a wet spot at the Venetian on

9 the marble floor?

i0 A No, I have not.

ii Q Go back to the question earlier. During

12 your 20 years, on how many occasions have you had to

13 clean up a spill on the marble floor at the Venetian?

14 A It’s not every day. When they call us, we

15 go and we clean it up.

16 Q So can you give me your best estimate of,

17 say, how many times a week you would clean up a spill

18 at the Venetian on the marble floor?

19 A Maybe once, maybe not at all. And I’m not

20 the only one.

21 Q And I think we had previous testimony

22 regarding the number of PAD workers that were

23 stationed on the marble floors at the ground floor at

24 the Venetian.

25 Do you know how many there are?
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1 A On the marble floor? On the cleaning?

2 Q How many are stationed for the marble floor?

3 A There’s six or eight stations in the casino.

4 I’m the only one in my station.

5 Q And how about the other stations? Do you

6 only have one?

7 A We have the first shift, second shift and

8 third shift.

9 Q How many people are stationed in each

I0 station?

Ii A Just one.

12 Q So on the day of this fall, were you

13 stationed in the restroom?

14 A I think I was.    I cannot guarantee.

15 Q How often are you stationed in the restroom

16 as a PAD employee at the Venetian?

17 A I am there nonstop, my eight hours.

18 Q All right. So would it be fair to state

19 that in your time at the Venetian as a PAD employee,

20 you’ve been principally stationed in the restroom?

21 A Not all the time. We were being shifted

22 around like every three months, six months, but now

23 for a year we’ve been staying in the same place.

24 Q And when you say you’ve been staying in the

25 same place, where is that?
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1 A Restroom Number 2.

2 Q And Restroom Number 2 is off the marble

3 flooring in the casino?

4 A Yes, it is.

5 Q So you’ve been stationed solely in Restroom

6 Number 2 over the past year. And did you mention to

7 me that you were in the restroom at the time that you

8 learned about this fall?

9 A Most likely I was working then there, but

i0 it’s been more than two, two and a half years.

ii Q When you say working then there, you mean

12 working in Restroom Number 2?

13 A Yes.

14 Q So we’ll say over the past five years, how

15 would you allocate the time that you spent as a PAD

16 employee at the Venetian in terms of the restroom

17 versus other stations?

18 A We have like a poker room close by that I go

19 and I check two bathrooms there and immediately I go

20 back to my station, and then I go to lunch for one

21 hour and that’s all.

22 Q Is that your station for the past five

23 years, you’re stationed in Restroom Number 2?

24 A Last one year. I was working in the garage.

25 Q Working in where?

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc:
6655_W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite ~2oo
Las Vegas, NV 89146 (702) 419-9676

1587



13

1 A In the garage.

2 Q So how long did you work in the garage?

3 A Six months or three months, you know. It

4 depends.

5 Q And where else have you worked in the

6 Venetian as a PAD employee?

7 .A Casino.

8 Q I’m talking about the past five years.

9 A The garage, Las Vegas Boulevard, the casino

i0 station and the balconies, casino.

ii Q When you talk about Las Vegas Boulevard,

12 what does that mean?

13 A We have -- towards the Las Vegas Boulevard,

14 if there’s anything, or any trash or anything, we have

15 to clean it up.

16 Q Is that outside work?

17 A Yes, it is.

18 Q Okay. So you work outside, you have worked

19 in the garages, you’ve worked in Restroom Number 2 and

20 then you said you worked in casino stations?

21 A Yes, everywhere. We keep rotating.

22 Q Is that correct in terms of all the

23 locations you’ve worked at over the past five years?

24 A Yes, it is.

25 Q When you talked about the casino stations,
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i can you tell me where you are positioned when you are

2 working with the casino stations?

3 A Cleaning the machines, carpet, ashtrays for

4 cigarettes, pick up the glasses from the machines, put

5 them away. If there’s any spill, we clean it up.    If

6 not, not.

7 Q When you talk about spills, sounds like when

8 you were working at the casino you are talking about

9 spills on the carpeted areas.

i0 A If someone spills something on the carpet,

ii then you got to stand there and the machine -- they

12 bring the machine to vacuum it and special cleaning so

13 that it’s not wet anywhere there.

14 Q So when you work in the casino station,

15 would it be fair to say, when there are spills, the

16 spills happen on carpet?

17 A Yeah. I have to call the supervisor if

18 there is a spill to send the machine over.

19 Q But is it your experience, as a PAD employee

20 in the casino station, that when you clean up the

21 spill or someone cleans up the spill, it’s on the

22 carpet?

23 A Yes, it is.

24 Q So let’s go back to the scene of this fall.

25 You said you arrived, you were called to the scene.
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1 Do you remember who called you?

2 (Crosstalk.)

3 THE COURT REPORTER: Wait, wait. Your words

4 are drowning his out.

5 BY MR. GALLIHER:

6 Q Yeah. Wait until you finish to interpret.

7 I know what you’re trying to do here.

8 A What I said is, Dina or some other

9 supervisor -- but I know it was some other supervisor

I0 who called. I didn’t remember the name.

ii Q When you arrived at the scene, did you do

12 anything in terms of cleaning up the spill or anything

13 of that nature?

14 A I couldn’t clean anything because she was

15 still sitting on the floor.

16 Q So the answer to my question is you didn’t

17 do anything to clean up anything that day?

18 A     Nothing. We cannot touch it until the

19 person is moved from there.

20 Q And the only person you saw clean it up is

21 David?

22 A David was cleaning it behind her back, but

23 we couldn’t see anything there. The mop was kind of

24 dry.

25 Q And so did you actually watch David clean
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1 the floor?

2 A Yes, I did.

3 Q So you then saw David take his mop and put

4 it in the bucket and wring it out?

5 A No, no.

6 Q You didn’t see that?

7 A No.

8 Q Did you see it on the video?

9 A I think I have seen it, but I can’t really

I0 recall it.

ii Q What else did you do at the scene other than

12 stand there?

13 A I didn’t do anything because I didn’t see

14 anything that I needed to do. But there’s a

15 possibility that when .she’s carrying her own glass,

16 that something could have spilled from her own glass.

17 Q And what glass was she carrying?

18 A I think that she was carrying the white

19 plastic glass, from what I’ve seen on the picture.

20 Q And how is it that you assumed that she was

21 carrying a glass and that’s what resulted in water or

22 liquid on the floor?

23 A When she was falling in the picture, she

24 threw away the glass from her hand.

25 Q Did you see the top come off the cup?
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1 A No, I didn’t. The only way to see it, we

2 looked at the video.

3 Q Did you -- did you see any liquid on the

4 floor after the fall?

5 A I saw some drops from the liquid, I was

6 telling her, but I’ve seen it on the video as well.

7 Q All right. So you have seen drops of liquid

8 on the floor when you came to the scene of the fall?

9 A Yes, and they were reaching a little bit to

i0 the carpet as well.

ii Q All right. So but you don’t know where that

12 liquid came from?

13 A It cannot come from anywhere except from

14 her. Yeah, you could see when she was there and the

15 other guests are walking by, if there was a little

16 more of liquid, some other guest could have slipped.

17 Q But do you know whether there was any liquid

18 on the floor before she fell?

19 A You cannot see it because she was on the

20 floor sitting, so you can’t see it whether it was or

21 not.

22 Q So the answer to my question is, you don’t

23 know whether there was any liquid on the floor before

24 the fall?

25 A That’s -- I couldn’t have seen anything
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1 then.

2 Q All right. I want to make sure we’re clear

3 on this.

4 A I am sure on myself.

5 Q All right.    So you do not know, as you

6 testify here today, whether there was any liquid on

7 the floor before the fall?

8 A I don’t know.

9 Q All right. How long did you remain at the

I0 scene?

ii A I didn’t stay much there because David was

12 there. I left the scene.

13 Q So did you leave the scene after David

14 arrived?

15 A Yes. He came with a mop and I left.

16 Q So how long after David arrived did you

17 leave?

18 A Very short time.

19 Q Were you there when the EMT security guard

20 arrived?

21 A No, I don’t think I was there.

22 Q Did you leave your name with anyone?

23 A No.

24 Q Did anybody contacted you after the date of

25 the fall to get a statement from you?
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1 A      One time I went to see the -- to view the

2 footage, if I can remember anything, and that was such

3 a long time ago. But no.

4 Q So when did you go review the footage?

5 A Three or four months ago.

6 Q And it was at somewhere other than

7 Mr. Royal’s office?

8 A This gentleman wasn’t there. It was just a

9 secretary and in the office.

i0 Q What office?

ii A This gentleman’s office; yes.

12 Q So you went to Mr. Royal’s office and you

13 watched the video with the secretary present?

14 A Well, where the secretary is sitting, that’s

15 where I --

16 Q But that was at Mr. Royal’s office?

17 A Where I was sitting with him, it was a

18 different office.

19 Q Was it the same location?

20 A Same location.

21 Q So apart from the two times you’ve seen the

22 surveillance video at Mr. Royal’s office, have you

23 seen it anywhere else?

24 A No.    Just with him at this office and the

25 lady’s office.
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1 Q Have you told me eve£ything you can remember

2 about the fall and your involvement in it?

3 A Everything.

4 Q Is there anything else that you can recall

5 about the fall that we haven’t talked about?

6 A I wouldn’t have anything, and I wouldn’t

7 want to add anything that I’m not sure of and that I

8 don’t know about.

9 Q Have you understood all my questions today?

i0 A Yes, yes, I understood questions and my

ii translation.

12 Q And any questions you want me to repeat or

13 rephrase for you?

14 A Not really. What bugs me is when somebody

15 falls and won’t move from that spot until security

16 comes so that we can see if there is any water or

17 anything there.

18 Q So what if that person is injured to the

19 point where they were unable to move?

20 A Then they should sit and wait and see who’s

21 spilled that, whether it’s their spill or somebody

22 else.

23 Q And is that what the lady you saw on the

24 floor did in this case?

25 A She was waiting for security and I left.
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1 When people are walking around with a glass

2 in their hand, they are looking around and a lot of

3 times they accidentally, you know, turn the glass and

4 start spilling. So we have to remind them to watch it

5 so that whatever they have, they don’t spill around.

6 Q And that’s because one drop on a marble

7 floor at the Venetian makes it extremely dangerous?

8 MR. ROYAL: Objection, foundation.

9 Go ahead.

i0 THE WITNESS: Very dangerous.

Ii MR. GALLIHER: Pass the witness.

12

13 EXAMINATION

14 BY MR. ROYAL:

15 Q When you reviewed footage of the incident,

16 did you have to leave the Venetian property?

17 A I continued to work after.

18 Q Okay. Today you are at a deposition. Did

19 you drive here?

20 A Yes, I have.

21 Q When you reviewed video either of the times

22 that you referenced in your responses to

23 Mr. Galliher’s questions, did you ever have to drive

24 and leave the property?

25 A After I finished work, I drive home.
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1 Q Okay. Okay. When you first arrived at the

2 scene -- strike that. You know what? Hold on, strike

3 that.

4 I’m going to show you what has been

5 identified as YEN019, and this is a video and it’s at

6 12:39:34.

7 MR. GALLIHER: If he’s going to commentate,

8 I think we need to know what you’re saying.

9 THE INTERPRETER: I’m going to come from the

i0 left side.

ii BY MR. ROYAL:

12 Q      So wait for a question. All right. At

13 12:39:34, I’m going to start this.    I want you to

14 watch for yourself, okay? I stopped it at three --

15 sorry -- 12:39:36. Can you see yourself?

16 A Yes, right here.

17 Q Is that you in a PAD uniform?

18 A Yes, it is.

19 Q And there’s a column to your right in at

20 least what’s depicted here?

21 A Yes, it is.

22 Q Do you see a woman on the floor?

23 A Yes.

24 Q As you look at this, does this refresh your

25 memory about anything you’ve testified to?
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1 A Yes, it does.

2 Q In what way?

3 A That when I came, I saw that she was

4 sitting. I was bending my head to look at the spill

5 and I didn’t see any at all where I’m looking at.

6 Q Did you look anywhere else in this area for

7 a spill?

8 A That part, the part over there, I couldn’t

9 see it.

i0 Q Okay.

Ii A I’m moving.

12 Q Hold on. I’m going to let it run from that

13 point. I’m going to stop it at 12:39:51.

14 Do you see David?

15 A I think that’s David there.

16 Q Okay. And that would be at the top right

17 area of this stopped video?

18 A Yeah.

19 Q Do you see someone else from PAD there?

20 A I think Maria is her name.

21 Q Okay.    Do you know Maria’s last name?

22 A No. On the last name, I don’t.

23 Q I’m going to now run it a little further.

24 I’m going to stop it at 12:39:55.

25 A They took a mop and they started to clean.

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc=
6655_W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite B2oo
Las-Vegas, NV 89146 (702) 419-9676

1598



24

1 See how he’s bending his head looking for a spill?

2 Q Okay. You are still there at 12:39:537

3 A Yes, I am.

4 Q 55, I should say.

5 Were you watching David mop at this time?

6 A I was standing there so nobody walks into it

7 to protect the area.

8 Q Okay. Did you see anything on the floor

9 where David was mopping at this particular point, at

i0 12:39:557

ii A     We have to check and then go over it just in

12 case there is something.

13 Q Okay.    Starting again, okay.    I’m going to

14 stop it at 12:40:01. You were just doing something

15 with your foot. Do you recall? I’m going to go

16 backward.

17 A I was showing that there was a little bit

18 there where it had spilled from her glass.

19 Q Okay. So at 12:39:57, I’m going to start

20 it. I want you to watch yourself.

21 A Okay.

22 Q Pointing with your foot. I’ll stop it at

23 12:40:01. Do you remember having a conversation with

24 David?

25 A Yeah. What I said was -- and he told me to
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1 stand there so that nobody goes into it.

2 Q Okay. Now at 12:40:04, you have now left.

3 A Yes, to my station.

4 Q Okay. Now, David’s mop at that point is in

5 the area where you are pointing with your foot

6 earlier.

7 A Yes, it is.

8 Now he’s draining it.

9 Q Okay. So at any time, do you specifically

i0 recall seeing something on the floor other than the

ii woman sitting?

12 A Not really. The only thing it could be was

13 that there was a little -- a little spill from a glass

14 that would be on the floor.

15 Q What glass do you have -- but did you

16 actually see anything on the floor?

17 A When I came there, only her spill would be

18 from the white coffee or something.

19 Q Did you talk with Maria or David after the

20 incident?

21 A No. We don’t talk about that.

22 Q You said you worked in the casino area and

23 there’s a lot of carpet. Is there also a marble floor

24 that goes through the casino area?

25 A Marble is usually when you’re going towards
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1 the exit or to front desk or sports book.

2 Q I see. When you were working Restroom 2, I

3 think you testified that you also do poker the

4 restroom.

5 A Yes. That’s the same job that I have.

6 Q Okay. And how far away are the restrooms

7 between the poker rooms and the one by the Grand Lux

8 in the casino area?

9 A Three or four machines, maybe one table, and

i0 then I move into poker room about 20 yards, my first

Ii room on the right.

12 When I finish with that one, I go further

13 forward on the corner on the left, and then further

14 forward on the right side.    I check what I need to do,

15 I have some paper and then I go back.

16 Q I see, okay. In between the two restrooms,

17 as you walk in between, do you have any kind of

18 responsibility?

19 A If I see anything in the way of spill or

20 dirty papers or anything, I’m supposed to take care of

21 it. I need to clean it up.

22 Q In your experience in your 20 years at the

23 Venetian as a PAD employee, what are some of the

24 reasons that you have to use a mop as a PAD employee?

25 A To pick up spill and clean it so
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1 everything’s okay.

2 Q Do you use a mop in the bathrooms?

3 A Yes.

4 Q Do you only use it in the bathroom if

5 there’s a spill, or do you use it for other reasons?

6 A The complete cleaning for the floor and

7 everything.

8 Q In your experience as a Venetian PAD

9 employee, how important is it to you to maintain the

I0 floors in the course of your duties?

ii HR. GALLIHER: Objection, foundation.

12 But you can answer.

13 THE WITNESS: To me, it’s the most important

14 because of the company and because of me so that

15 nobody can fall down.

16 BY MR. ROYAL:

17 Q     All right. And you saw the woman on the

18 floor when you got to the scene?

19 A Yes.

20 Q How many times have you seen that occur in

21 your 20 years?

22 A Maybe I’ve seen a couple of times. It

23 doesn’t happen to all the stations. I can be here and

24 it could happen half of the casino, so I don’t go all

25 the way there to look.

Canyon ~ourt Reporting, Inc=
6655 W~st Sahara Avenue, Suite B2oo
Las-Vegas, NV 89146 (702) 419-9676

1602



28

1 Q I’m just asking about what you have

2 personally seen.

3 A Personally that I’ve seen, maybe two times.

4 Q All right. Would this be one of those two

5 times?

6 A I’m including this time as the second time.

7 Q All right. Thank you.

8

9 FURTHER EXAMINATION

I0 BY MR. GALLIHER:

ii Q So let me clarify this. So in the 20 years

12 you’ve worked at the Venetian as a PAD employee, you

13 have seen two falls on the marble floors with liquid?

14 A That’s for sure. Two times, but not more.

15 Q Two times at the most?

16 A From all these 20 years that since I started

17 working.

18 Q And you’ve never seen or heard of any other

19 falls, other than the two that you’ve witnessed, of

20 the marble?

21 A Only what I see with my eyes I believe it’s

22 true, but not what else you talk about.

23 Q All right.    So I want to make sure we’re

24 clear. Two falls at the most?

25 A At the most, me personally with my eyes.
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1 Q Is the poker room carpeted?

2 A Yes. There’s one circle of marble and,

3 yeah, it’s a combination.    They’re like little squares

4 of marble and then carpet and so on, repeated like

5 that.

6 Q How about where the players walk and sit?

7 A That’s carpet there.

8 Q And would that also be true of the casino?

9 A Where the machines are, the casino, yes, and

i0 tables too.

ii Q So wherever the players walk or sit is

12 carpeted in the casino?

13 A Yes

14 Q I think you testified earlier that as a PAD

15 employee, you’ve used a mop on a number of occasions;

16 is that right?

17 A That mop that we use when there’s a spill

18 outside of the bathroom. But if it’s being used in

19 the bathroom, it’s not being used outside of the

20 bathroom.

21 Q I want to make sure we’re clear on this. In

22 your 20 years, you’ve presumed you’ve used a mop in

23 your 20 years as PAD employee.

24 A If something dirty. There’s no people, no

25 spill, I’ve never used it.
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1 Q So let’s try this again. In your 20 years

2 as a PAD employee at the Venetian, have you used a mop

3 and a bucket?

4 A I always use it in the bathroom and then if

5 there’s a spill outside.

6 Q So on how many occasions would you say

7 you’ve used your mop and bucket in the last 20 years?

8 A When I’m working in the bathroom, I use it

9 more than five times a day, maybe i0 times a day

i0 because of urinary.

ii Q And so when we talk about using it in the

12 bathroom, you’ve used the mop to clean up liquids?

13 A Yes.

14 Q And then after you clean up the liquids,

15 what do you do with the mop and your bucket?

16 A I wash it in a bucket, I change the water.

17 Q Do you wring out the mop?

18 A Of course.

19 MR. GALLIHER: Pass the witness.

20 THE WITNESS: I can’t allow it if somebody

21 falls, then I carry it on myself.

22

23 FURTHER EXAMINATION

24 BY MR. ROYAL:

25 Q In the times you’ve used -- or strike that.
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i Do you also use a mop to clean up scuffs?

2 A Yeah. You have to clean it.

3 Q Have you ever used a mop as a precautionary

4 measure?

5 MR. GALLIHER: Objection, vague.

6 You may answer.

7 THE WITNESS: If there’s anything dirty, any

8 spill, I have to. I cannot leave it dirty anywhere.

9 BY MR. ROYAL:

I0 Q You don’t -- you don’t -- when David was

II using a mop in this case or in this instance, when you

12 arrived at the scene, you didn’t see what he was

13 mopping up; correct?

14 A If there was a spill, I guarantee that I

15 would have seen it.    If it was a lot of spill, yeah,

16 you would have seen a lot of spill.

17 If they spill a big glass, it would be the

18 size of half of this table, the area.

19 Q Okay. You didn’t see -- strike that.

20 Did you see anything that looked like water

21 in the area on the floor when you were there?

22 A     No.

23 MR. ROYAL: That’s it.

24

25/////
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1 FURTHER EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. GALLIHER:

3 Q But a little spot of water at that location

4 would have made that lady fall; right?

5 MR. ROYAL: Objection, form; calls for

6 speculation.

7 BY MR. GALLIHER:

8 Q You may answer.

9 A Depends on the shoes.

i0 Q So what would make a difference in her

ii shoes?

12 A Some shoes that are easily -- you slip with.

13 Q Some shoes that would easily slip on a spot

14 of water?

15 A One drop you can slip if the shoe is not

16 good.

17 Q So one drop you can slip on the shoes on the

18 marble floor at the Venetian if the shoe wasn’t good?

19 MR. ROYAL: Objection, foundation.

20 THE WITNESS: Yes, you could.

21 BY MR. GALLIHER:

22 Q So did you look carefully at this lady’s

23 shoes?

24 A No.

25 Q So you don’t know what shoes she was
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1 wearing; right?

2 A No, I don’t. And I cannot even ask.

3 MR. GA~.LI~{ER: Thank you. Nothing further.

4 MR. ROYAL: That’s it for me.

5 MR. GAL~.I~{]~: All right. Thanks very much,

6 sir.

7 (The deposition concluded at 3:35 p.m.)
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1                            REPORTER’S DECLARATION

2 STATE OF NEVADA)
)

3 COUNTY OF CLARK)

4 I, Pauline C. May, CCR No. 286, declare as

5 follows:

6 That I reported the taking of the deposition of the

7 witness, MILAN GRAOVAC, commencing on Monday,

8 April 22, 2019 at the hour of 2:40 p.m.

9 That prior to .being examined, the witness was by me

I0 duly sworn to testify to the truth, the whole truth,

ii and nothing but the truth.

12 That I thereafter transcribed said shorthand notes

13 into typewriting and that the typewritten transcript

14 of said deposition is a complete, true and accurate

15 transcription of said shorthand notes taken down at

16 said time, and that a request has not been made to

17 review the transcript.

18 I further declare that I am not a relative or

19 employee of counsel of any party involved in said

20 action, nor a relative or employee of the parties

21 involved in said action, nor a person financially

22 interested in the action.

23 Date~,~gt Las Vegas, Nevada this day of

25 ~n-dline C. Maj] CC~ ~ ~T~
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